# Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act

BROAD-BASED BLACK ECONOMIC EMPOWERMENT ACT 53 OF 2003 AS AMENDED BY ACT 46 OF 2013



This booklet is published by the B-BBEE Commission purely for educational and awareness purposes. All care has been taken to ensure it is correct and an accurate reflection of the Act signed by the President. Should for any reason be a difference in the text in this booklet, and the text in the government gazette, the user must always revert to the text issued in the government gazette.

the dti Campus First Floor, Block B 77 Meintjies Street Sunnyside Pretoria 0001

Tel: (+27) 12 394 1535 Fax: (+27) 12 394 2535

E-mail: RamareM@beecommission.gov.za

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

ACI		5
PREA	MBLE	5
ARRA	NGEMENT OF ACT	6
1.	Definitions	7
2.	Objectives of Act	12
3.	Interpretation of Act	13
4.	Establishment of Black Economic Empowerment	
	Advisory Council	
5.	Functions of Council	14
6.	Composition of Council and appointment of	
	members	15
7.	Constitution and rules of Council	
8.	Remuneration and reimbursement of expenses	16
9.	Codes of good practice	
10.	Status of codes of good practice	18
11.	Strategy for broad-based black economic	
	empowerment	19
12.	Transformation charters	20
13.	Support services and funding of Council	20
13A.	Cancellation of contract or authorisation	21
13B.	Establishment and status of Broad-Based Black	
	Economic Empowerment Commission	21
13C.	Appointment of Commissioner and Acting	
	Commissioner	22
13D.	Appointment of Deputy Commissioner and staff of	
	Commission	24
13E.	Finances of Commission	24
13F.	Functions of Commission	25
13G.	Reporting	27
13H.	Delegation	28

13I.	Specialist committees	. 29
13J.	Investigations by Commission	. 31
13K.	Summonses	33
13L.	Confidential information	. 34
13M.	Conflicting interests of employees	. 35
13N.	Offences in connection with Commission	36
130.	Other offences and penalties	. 37
13P.	Prohibition on business with organs of state following	
	conviction under this Act	
14.	Regulations, guidelines and practice notes	
15.	Short title and commencement	. 40
	CODES OF GOOD PRACTICE TABLE OF CONTENTS	
	EMENT 000: GENERAL PRINCIPLES AND THE GENERIC	
SCOR	ECARD	46
1	Objectives of this statement	. 47
2.	Key principles	
3.	Application of the codes	
4.	Eligibility as an exempted micro-enterprise (EME)	
5.	Eligibility as a qualifying small enterprises (QSE)	
6.	Start-up enterprises	
7.	The generic scorecard	
8.	The B-BBEE generic scorecard	. 54
9.	Enhanced recognition for certain categories of black people	. 56
10.	Transitional period	56
11.	Adjustment of thresholds	. 56
12.	Duration of the B-BBEE codes	. 57
AME	NDED CODE SERIES 100: MEASUREMENT OF THE	
	OWNERSHIP ELEMENT OF BROAD-BASED BLACK ECONOMIC EMPOWERMENT	5.0
1	OBJECTIVES OF THIS STATEMENT	59

2	THE OWNERSHIP SCORECARD	59
3	KEY MEASUREMENT PRINCIPLES	61
4.	ANNEXE 100 (A)	73
	ANNEXE 100 (B)	74
	ANNEXE 100 (C)	76
	ANNEXE 100 (D)	78
	ANNEXE 100 (E)	80
STA	TEMENT 200: THE GENERAL PRINCIPLES FOR MEAS	SURING
	MANAGEMENT CONTROL	86
1	Objectives of this statement	87
2	Management control scorecard	
3	Key measurement principles	
4.	Measurement of the management control	
	criteria	91
5	Measurement of management control indicators	annexe
	200A	92
STA	TEMENT 300: THE GENERAL PRINCIPLES FOR MEAS	URING
	SKILLS DEVELOPMENT	94
1.	Objectives of this statement	95
2.	The skills development element scorecard	
3.	Key measurement principles	
4.	Sub-minimum and discounting principle	98
5.	General principles	98
6.	Legitimate recognisable training expenses	100
7.	Measurement of skills development indicators	100
8.	Annexe 300 (A)	101
9.	Annexe 300 (B)	104
A:	Measurement of skills development indicators	104
B:	Measurement of skills development indicators	105

SIAI	ENTERPRISE AND SUPPLIER DEVELOPMENT	
1.	Objectives of this statement	
2.	Enterprise and supplier development scorecard	108
3.	Key measurement principles	111
4.	General principles	
6	Exclusions from total measured procurement spe	
7.	Measurement of B-BBEE procurement spend	
8	The calculation of preferential procurement cont	
	to B-BBEE	
9	Enterprise development and supplier developme	
	contributions	
10	Monetary and non-monetary contributions	
11	Measurement of enterprise development and su	
	development contributions	
A:	Annexe400 (a)	
A: B:	B-BBEE procurement spend: The calculation of preferential procurement cont	
Б.	to B-BBEE:	
	Annexe 400(B)	
	Annexe 400(8)	
A:	Qualifying contributions are measurable on the f	
	basis:	0
STAT	EMENT 500: THE GENERAL PRINCIPLES FOR MEAS	
	THE SOCIO - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ELEMEI	NT134
1	Objectives of this statement	135
2	The SED scorecard	135
3	Key measurement principles	136
4	Measurement of socio-economic development	
	contributions	
5	The benefit factor matrix	139

A:	Annexe 500 (b)	g
BROA	AD-BASED BLACK ECONOMIC EMPOWERMENT ACT: SECTION 9(1) CODES OF GOOD PRACTICE AS AMENDED	143

[This is the **current** version and applies as from **24 October 2014**, i.e. the date of commencement of the Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Amendment Act 46 of 2013 – **to date**]

## BROAD-BASED BLACK ECONOMIC EMPOWERMENT ACT 53 OF 2003

(Gazette No. 25899, Notice No. 17 dated 9 January 2004. Commencement date: 21 April 2004 [Proc. No. R26, Gazette No. 26285])

## As amended by:

Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Amendment Act 46 of 2013 - Government Notice 55 in Government Gazette 37271 dated 27 January 2014. Commencement date: 24 October 2014 – unless otherwise indicated [Proc. No. 72, Gazette No. 38126]

(English text signed by the President) (Assented to 7 January 2004)

**ACT** 

To establish a legislative framework for the promotion of black economic empowerment; to empower the Minister to issue codes of good practice and to publish transformation charters; to establish the Black Economic Empowerment Advisory Council; and to provide for matters connected therewith.

#### PREAMBLE

**WHEREAS** under apartheid race was used to control access to South Africa's productive resources and access to skills;

**WHEREAS** South Africa's economy still excludes the vast majority of its people from ownership of productive assets and the possession of advanced skills:

**WHEREAS** South Africa's economy performs below its potential because of the low level of income earned and generated by the majority of its people;

**AND WHEREAS**, unless further steps are taken to increase the effective participation of the majority of South Africans in the economy, the stability and prosperity of the economy in the future may be undermined to the detriment of all South Africans, irrespective of race;

#### AND IN ORDER TO -

- promote the achievement of the constitutional right to equality, increase broad-based and effective participation of black people in the economy and promote a higher growth rate, increased employment and more equitable income distribution; and
- establish a national policy on broad-based black economic empowerment so as to promote the economic unity of the nation, protect the common market, and promote equal opportunity and equal access to government services,

BE IT ENACTED by the Parliament of the Republic of South Africa, as follows: -

#### ARRANGEMENT OF ACT

- Definitions
- 2. Objectives of Act
- 3. Interpretation of Act
- 4. Establishment of Black Economic Empowerment Advisory
  Council
- 5. Functions of Council
- 6. Composition of Council and appointment of members
- 7. Constitution and rules of Council
- 8. Remuneration and reimbursement of expenses
- 9. Codes of good practice
- 10. Status of codes of good practice
- 11. Strategy for broad-based black economic empowerment
- 12. Transformation charters
- 13. Support services and funding of Council
- 13A. Cancellation of contract or authorisation
- 13B. Establishment and status of Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Commission

- 13C. Appointment of Commissioner and Acting Commissioner
- Appointment of Deputy Commissioner and staff of Commission
- 13E. Finances of Commission
- 13F. Functions of Commission
- 13G. Reporting
- 13H. Delegation
- 13I. Specialist committees
- 13J. Investigations by Commission
- 13K. Summonses
- 13L. Confidential information
- 13M. Conflicting interests of employees
- 13N. Offences in connection with Commission
- 130. Other offences and penalties
- Prohibition on business with organs of state following conviction under this Act
- 14. Regulations, guidelines and practice notes
- 15. Short title and commencement

#### 1. Definitions

In this Act, unless the context indicates otherwise—

"B-BBEE initiative" means any transaction, practice, scheme or other initiative which affects compliance with this Act or any other law promoting broad-based black economic empowernment [sic];

(Definition of "B-BBEE initiative" inserted by section 1(a) of Act 46 of 2013)

"B-BBEE verification professional" means a person who performs any work in connection with rating the status of enterprises in terms of broad-based black economic empowerment compliance on the authority of, or for a rating agency accredited by, a B-BBEE Verification Professional Regulator;

(Definition of "B-BBEE verification professional" inserted by section 1(a) of Act 46 of 2013)

"B-BBEE Verification Professional Regulator" means a body appointed by the Minister for the accreditation of rating agencies or the authorisation of B-BBEE verification professionals;

(Definition of "B-BBEE Verification Professional Regulator" inserted by section 1(a) of Act 46 of 2013)

"black people" is a generic term which means Africans, Coloureds and Indians-

- (a) who are citizens of the Republic of South Africa by birth or descent; or
- (b) who became citizens of the Republic of South Africa by naturalisation-
  - (i) before 27 April 1994; or
  - on or after 27 April 1994 and who would have been entitled to acquire citizenship by naturalisation prior to that date;

(Definition of "black people" substituted by section 1(b) of Act 46 of 2013)

"broad-based black economic empowerment" means the viable economic empowerment of all black people, in particular women, workers, youth, people with disabilities and people living in rural areas, through diverse but integrated socio-economic strategies that include, but are not limited to-

 increasing the number of black people that manage, own and control enterprises and productive assets;

- facilitating ownership and management of enterprises and productive assets by communities, workers, co-operatives and other collective enterprises;
- (c) human resource and skills development;
- achieving equitable representation in all occupational categories and levels in the workforce;
- (e) preferential procurement from enterprises that are owned or managed by black people; and
- investment in enterprises that are owned or managed by black people;

(Definition of "broad-based black economic empowerment" substituted by section 1(c) of Act 46 of 2013)

"Commission" means the Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Commission established by section 13B;

(Definition of "Commission" inserted by section 1(d) of Act 46 of 2013)

"Council" means the Black Economic Empowerment Advisory Council established by section 4;

"Department" means the Department of Trade and Industry;

(Definition of "Department" inserted by section 1(e) of Act 46 of 2013)

"fronting practice" means a transaction, arrangement or other act or conduct that directly or indirectly undermines or frustrates the achievement of the objectives of this Act or the implementation of any of the provisions of this Act, including but not limited to practices in connection with a B-BBEE initiative-

- in terms of which black persons who are appointed to an enterprise are discouraged or inhibited from substantially participating in the core activities of that enterprise;
- (b) in terms of which the economic benefits received as a result of the broad-based black economic empowerment status of an enterprise do not flow to black people in the ratio specified in the relevant legal documentation;
- (c) involving the conclusion of a legal relationship with a black person for the purpose of that enterprise achieving a certain level of broad-based black economic empowerment compliance without granting that black person the economic benefits that would reasonably be expected to be associated with the status or position held by that black person; or
- (d) involving the conclusion of an agreement with another enterprise in order to achieve or enhance broad-based black economic empowerment status in circumstances in which-
  - there are significant limitations, whether implicit or explicit, on the identity of suppliers, service providers, clients or customers;
  - the maintenance of business operations is reasonably considered to be improbable, having regard to the resources available;
  - (iii) the terms and conditions were not negotiated at arm's length and on a fair and reasonable basis;

(Definition of "fronting practice" inserted by section 1(e) of Act 46 of 2013)

"knowing", "knowingly" or "knows", when used with respect to a person, and in relation to a particular matter, means that the person either-

- (a) had actual knowledge of that matter; or
- (b) was in a position in which the person reasonably ought to have-
  - (i) had actual knowledge;
  - (ii) investigated the matter to an extent that would have provided the person with actual knowledge; or
  - (iii) taken other measures which, if taken, would reasonably be expected to have provided the person with actual knowledge of the matter;

(Definition of "knowing", "knowingly" or "knows" inserted by section 1(e) of Act 46 of 2013)

"members" means members of the Council;

"Minister" means the Minister of Trade and Industry;

## "organ of state" means—

- a national or provincial department as defined in the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999);
- (b) a municipality as contemplated in the Constitution;
- (c) Parliament;
- (d) a provincial legislature; and
- (e) a constitutional institution listed in Schedule 1 to the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999);

"premises" includes land, or any building, structure, vehicle, ship, boat, vessel, aircraft or container;

## (Definition of "premises" inserted by section 1(f) of Act 46 of 2013)

"prescribe" means prescribe by regulation;

"public entity" means a public entity listed in Schedule 2 or 3 to the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999);

"sector charters" means sectoral transformation charters referred to in section 9;

(Definition of "sector charters" inserted by section 1(g) of Act 46 of 2013)

"strategy" means a strategy for broad-based black economic empowerment issued in terms of section 11; and

"this Act" includes any code of good practice or regulation made under this Act.

#### 2. Objectives of Act

The objectives of this Act are to facilitate broad-based black economic empowerment by—

- promoting economic transformation in order to enable meaningful participation of black people in the economy;
- achieving a substantial change in the racial composition of ownership and management structures and in the skilled occupations of existing and new enterprises;
- (c) increasing the extent to which communities, workers, cooperatives and other collective enterprises own and manage existing and new enterprises and increasing their access to economic activities, infrastructure and skills training;

- (d) increasing the extent to which black women own and manage existing and new enterprises, and increasing their access to economic activities, infrastructure and skills training;
- (e) promoting investment programmes that lead to broadbased and meaningful participation in the economy by black people in order to achieve sustainable development and general prosperity;
- empowering rural and local communities by enabling access to economic activities, land, infrastructure, ownership and skills;

(Section 2(f) substituted by section 2(a) of Act 46 of 2013)

(g) promoting access to finance for black start-ups, small, medium and micro enterprises, co-operatives and black entrepreneurs, including those in the informal business sector; and

(Section 2(g) substituted by section 2(b) of Act 46 of 2013)

(h) increasing effective economic participation and black owned and managed enterprises, including small, medium and micro enterprises and co-operatives and enhancing their access to financial and non-financial support.

(Section 2(h) added by section 2(c) of Act 46 of 2013)

#### 3. Interpretation of Act

- (1) Any person applying this Act must interpret its provisions so as—
  - (a) to give effect to its objectives and purposes; and

(Section 3(a) substituted by section 3(a) of Act 46 of 2013)

- (b) to comply with the Constitution.
- (2) In the event of any conflict between this Act and any other law in force immediately prior to the date of commencement of the Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Amendment Act, 2013, this Act prevails if the conflict specifically relates to a matter dealt with in this Act.

(Section 3(2) added by section 3(b) of Act 46 of 2013 – only with effect from 24 October 2015, and the current section to be renumbered to section 3(1))

## 4. Establishment of Black Economic Empowerment Advisory Council

The Black Economic Empowerment Advisory Council is hereby established.

#### 5. Functions of Council

The Council must—

- (a) advise government on black economic empowerment;
- (b) review progress in achieving black economic empowerment;
- advise on draft codes of good practice which the Minister intends publishing for comment in terms of section 9(5);
- (d) advise on the development, amendment or replacement of the strategy referred to in section 11;
- (e) if requested to do so, advise on draft transformation charters; and

(f) facilitate partnerships between organs of state and the private sector that will advance the objectives of this Act.

## 6. Composition of Council and appointment of members

- (1) The Council consists of—
  - (a) the President, who is the chairperson of the Council;
  - (b) the Minister, with the Minister's Director-General as an alternate;
  - (c) three other Cabinet Ministers, appointed by the President, with their respective Directors-General as alternates;
  - (d) no fewer than 10 and no more than 15 other members appointed by the President.
- (2) When appointing members in terms of subsection (1)(d), the President shall have regard to the need for the Council—
  - (a) to have appropriate expertise;
  - (b) to represent different relevant constituencies including trade unions, business, community-based organisations and academics.
- (3) In appointing members in terms of subsection (1)(d), the President shall follow an appropriate consultative process.
- (4) The President shall appoint a Cabinet Minister who is also a member of the Council to act as chairperson of the Council in the President's absence.

#### 7. Constitution and rules of Council

(1) The Minister must establish a constitution for the Council.

- (2) The Minister may amend the constitution of the Council from time to time, after consultation with the Council.
- (3) The Council may, by resolution, and after consultation with the Minister, make rules to further regulate the proceedings of the Council.

#### 8. Remuneration and reimbursement of expenses

Council members must be remunerated for their services in accordance with the provisions of the National Treasury Regulations, and must be reimbursed for expenses incurred by them in carrying out their duties, as determined by the Minister, with the concurrence of the Minister of Finance.

(Section 8 substituted by section 4 of Act 46 of 2013)

### 9. Codes of good practice

- (1) In order to promote the purposes of the Act, the Minister may by notice in the Gazette issue codes of good practice on black economic empowerment that may include—
  - the further interpretation and definition of broadbased black economic empowerment and the interpretation and definition of different categories of black empowerment entities;
  - qualification criteria for preferential purposes for procurement and other economic activities;
  - (c) indicators to measure broad-based black economic empowerment;
  - (d) the weighting to be attached to broad-based black economic empowerment indicators referred to in paragraph (c);

 guidelines for stakeholders in the relevant sectors of the economy to draw up transformation charters and codes of good practice for their sector; and

(Section 9(1)(e) substituted by section 5(a) of Act 46 of 2013)

- (f) any other matter necessary to achieve the objectives of this Act.
- (2) A strategy issued by the Minister in terms of section 11 must be taken into account in preparing any code of good practice.
- (3) A code of good practice issued in terms of subsection (1) may specify—
  - (a) targets consistent with the objectives of this Act; and
  - (b) the period within which those targets must be achieved.
- (4) In order to promote the achievement of equality of women, as provided for in section 9(2) of the Constitution, a code of good practice issued in terms of subsection (1) and any targets specified in a code of good practice in terms of subsection (3), may distinguish between black men and black women.
- (5) The Minister must, before issuing, replacing or amending a code of good practice in terms of subsection (1)—
  - (a) publish the draft code of good practice or amendment in the *Gazette* for public comment; and
  - (b) grant interested persons a period of at least 60 days to comment on the draft code of good practice or amendment, as the case may be.

(6) If requested to do so, the Minister may by notice in the Gazette permit organs of state or public entities to specify qualification criteria for procurement and other economic activities which exceed those set by the Minister in terms of subsection (1).

(Section 9(6) added by section 5(b) of Act 46 of 2013)

(7) A code of good practice remains in effect until amended, replaced or repealed.

(Section 9(7) added by section 5(b) of Act 46 of 2013)

## 10. Status of codes of good practice

- Every organ of state and public entity must apply any relevant code of good practice issued in terms of this Act in-
  - (a) determining qualification criteria for the issuing of licences, concessions or other authorisations in respect of economic activity in terms of any law;
  - (b) developing and implementing a preferential procurement policy;
  - determining qualification criteria for the sale of stateowned enterprises;
  - (d) developing criteria for entering into partnerships with the private sector; and
  - (e) determining criteria for the awarding of incentives, grants and investment schemes in support of broadbased black economic empowerment.

(2)

- (a) The Minister may, after consultation with the relevant organ of state or public entity, exempt the organ of state or public entity from a requirement contained in subsection (1) or allow a deviation therefrom if particular objectively verifiable facts or circumstances applicable to the organ of state or public entity necessitate an exemption or deviation.
- (b) The Minister must publish the notice of exemption or deviation in the Gazette.
- (3) Subject to section 9(6), an enterprise in a sector in respect of which the Minister has issued a sector code of good practice in terms of section 9, may only be measured for compliance with the requirements of broad-based black economic empowerment in accordance with that code.
- (4) Enterprises operating in a sector in respect of which the Minister has issued a sector code of good practice in terms of section 9, must report annually on their compliance with broad-based black economic empowerment to the sector council which may have been established for that sector.

(Section 10 substituted by section 6 of Act 46 of 2013)

#### 11. Strategy for broad-based black economic empowerment

- (1) The Minister—
  - (a) must issue a strategy for broad-based black economic empowerment;
  - (b) may change or replace a strategy issued in terms of this section.
- (2) A strategy in terms of this section must—

- (a) provide for an integrated co-ordinated and uniform approach to broad-based black economic empowerment by all organs of state, public entities, the private sector, non-governmental organisations, local communities and other stakeholders;
- (b) develop a plan for financing broad-based black economic empowerment, including the creation of incentive schemes to support effective black owned and managed enterprises;

(Section 11(2)(b) substituted by section 7 of Act 46 of 2013)

- (c) provide a system for organs of state, public entities and other enterprises to prepare broad-based black economic empowerment plans and to report on compliance with those plans; and
- (d) be consistent with this Act.

#### 12. Transformation charters

The Minister must publish in the *Gazette* for general information and promote a transformation charter for a particular sector of the economy, if the Minister is satisfied that the charter—

- has been developed by major stakeholders in that sector; and
- (b) advances the objectives of this Act.

## 13. Support services and funding of Council

(1) The Department of Trade and Industry must provide the Council with the necessary support services and funding out of money appropriated by Parliament for that purpose.

- (2) The funds referred to in subsection (1), must be utilised for—
  - the establishment and operating costs of the Council;
     and
  - (b) the development and implementation of a communication plan on broad-based black economic empowerment.

### 13A. Cancellation of contract or authorisation

Any contract or authorisation awarded on account of false information knowingly furnished by or on behalf of an enterprise in respect of its broad-based black economic empowerment status, may be cancelled by the organ of state or public entity without prejudice to any other remedies that the organ of state or public entity may have.

(Section 13A inserted by section 8 of Act 46 of 2013)

## 13B. Establishment and status of Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Commission

- (1) The Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Commission is hereby established as an entity within the administration of the Department.
- (2) The Commission is headed by a Commissioner appointed by the Minister.
- (3) The Commission-
  - (a) has jurisdiction throughout the Republic;
  - (b) must be impartial and perform its functions without fear, favour or prejudice; and
  - (c) must exercise the functions assigned to it in terms of

this Act or any other law-

- in the most cost-effective and efficient manner; and
- (ii) in accordance with the values and principles mentioned in section 195 of the Constitution.
- (4) The Minister may issue directives of a general nature, which are consistent with this Act, to the Commission concerning the performance of its functions and the Commission must comply with any such directive.
- (5) Each organ of state must assist the Commission to exercise its authority and perform its functions effectively.

(Section 13B inserted by section 8 of Act 46 of 2013)

## 13C. Appointment of Commissioner and Acting Commissioner

(1)

- (a) The Minister must appoint a person with suitable qualifications and experience to be the Commissioner for a term of not more than five years.
- (b) When appointing the Commissioner, the Minister must consult the relevant Portfolio Committee of the National Assembly and the relevant Select Committee of the National Council of Provinces.
- (2) The Minister may re-appoint a person as Commissioner at the expiry of that person's term of office for one additional term of office.
- (3) The Commissioner, who is the Chief Executive Officer of the Commission, is responsible for the general administration of the Commission and for carrying out any functions assigned to it in terms of this Act, and must-

- (a) perform the functions that are conferred on the Commissioner by or in terms of this Act;
- (b) manage and direct the activities of the Commission; and
- (c) supervise the Commission's staff.
- (4) The Minister must, in consultation with the Minister of Finance, determine the Commissioner's remuneration, allowances, benefits and other terms and conditions of employment.
- (5) The Commissioner may, on three months' written notice addressed to the Minister, resign as Commissioner.
- (6) The Minister may remove the Commissioner from office on account of-
  - (a) serious misconduct;
  - (b) permanent incapacity;
  - engaging in any activity that may undermine the integrity or standing of the Commission; or
  - (d) any other legitimate ground that justifies the removal of the Commissioner.
- (7) If the Commissioner and the Deputy Commissioner are for any reason at the same time unable to perform their functions assigned to them in terms of this Act, the Minister may, on such conditions as the Minister may determine, appoint a suitable person as Acting Commissioner to perform the functions of the Commissioner.

(Section 13C inserted by section 8 of Act 46 of 2013)

## 13D. Appointment of Deputy Commissioner and staff of Commission

- (1) The Commissioner, in consultation with the Minister, must appoint a person with suitable qualifications and experience to be the Deputy Commissioner for a term of five years.
- (2) Section 13C(2), (4), (5) and (6) apply to the Deputy Commissioner, read with such changes as are required by the context.
- (3) The Deputy Commissioner must perform the functions of the Commissioner whenever-
  - the Commissioner is unable for any reason to perform those functions; or
  - (b) the office of Commissioner is vacant.
- (4) The Commissioner may-
  - appoint staff members with suitable qualifications and experience, or contract with other persons, to assist the Commission in carrying out its functions;
  - (b) in consultation with the Minister and the Minister of Finance, determine the remuneration, allowances, benefits and other terms and conditions of appointment of each member of the staff.

(Section 13D inserted by section 8 of Act 46 of 2013)

### 13E. Finances of Commission

(1) The Commission is financed from-

- (a) money that is appropriated by Parliament for the Commission; and
- (b) money lawfully received from any other source.
- (2) The Auditor-General must audit the Commission's financial records every year.

(Section 13E inserted by section 8 of Act 46 of 2013)

#### 13F. Functions of Commission

- (1) The functions of the Commission are-
  - (a) to oversee, supervise and promote adherence with this Act in the interest of the public;
  - to strengthen and foster collaboration between the public and private sector in order to promote and safeguard the objectives of broad-based black economic empowerment;
  - to receive complaints relating to broad-based black economic empowerment in accordance with the provisions of this Act;
  - to investigate, either of its own initiative or in response to complaints received, any matter concerning broadbased black economic empowerment;
  - to promote advocacy, access to opportunities and educational programmes and initiatives of broadbased black economic empowerment;
  - (f) to maintain a registry of major broad-based black economic empowerment transactions, above a threshold determined by the Minister by notice in the Gazette;

- (g) to receive and analyse such reports as may be prescribed concerning broad-based black economic empowerment compliance from organs of state, public entities and private sector enterprises;
- to promote good governance and accountability by creating an effective and efficient environment for the promotion and implementation of broad-based black economic empowerment; and
- to exercise such other powers which are not in conflict with this Act as may be conferred on the Commission in writing by the Minister.
- (2) A complaint contemplated in subsection (1)(c) and (d) must be-
  - (a) in the prescribed form; and
  - (b) substantiated by evidence justifying an investigation by the Commission.
- (3) The Commission must increase knowledge of the nature and dynamics and promote public awareness of matters relating to broad-based black economic empowerment by-
  - implementing education and information measures to develop public awareness of the provisions of this Act, and in particular to advance the purposes of this Act;
  - (b) providing guidance to the public by
    - issuing explanatory notices outlining its procedures;
    - (ii) issuing non-binding opinions on the interpretation of any provision of this Act; or

- (iii) applying to a court for a declaratory order on the interpretation or application of the provisions of this Act; and
- (c) conducting research relating to its mandate and activities and, from time to time, publishing the results of that research.
- (4) The Commission may liaise with any regulatory authority on matters of common interest and, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, may-
  - exchange information with and receive information from any such regulatory authority pertaining either to matters of common interest or to a specific complaint or investigation;
  - (b) participate in the proceedings of any regulatory authority; and
  - (c) advise, or receive advice from, any regulatory authority.
- (5) Notwithstanding the provisions of any law, but subject to the approval of the Minister, the Commissioner may enter into an agreement with any other person, body of persons or organ of state, including a special investigating unit established under the Special Investigating Units and Special Tribunals Act, 1996 (Act No. 74 of 1996), to perform any of the Commission's duties and functions under this Act.

(Section 13F inserted by section 8 of Act 46 of 2013)

## 13G. Reporting

 All spheres of government, public entities and organs of state must report on their compliance with broad-based

- black economic empowerment in their audited annual financial statements and annual reports required under the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999).
- (2) All public companies listed on the Johannesburg Stock Exchange must provide to the Commission, in such manner as may be prescribed, a report on their compliance with broad-based black economic empowerment.
- (3) All Sectoral Education and Training Authorities contemplated in the Skills Development Act, 1998 (Act No. 97 of 1998), must report on skills development spending and programmes to the Commission.

(Section 13G inserted by section 8 of Act 46 of 2013)

## 13H. Delegation

- (1) The Commissioner may delegate any power conferred on him or her or any duty assigned to him or her under this Act, to any other person with appropriate knowledge and experience who is appointed to or contracted with the Commission to assist it in the carrying out of its functions.
- (2) Notwithstanding subsection (1), the Commissioner may not delegate the powers referred to in section 13D(1) or (4).
- (3) A delegation under subsection (1) must be in writing and-
  - (a) may be subject to any conditions or restrictions determined by the Commissioner;
  - (b) does not prevent the exercise of the relevant power by the Commissioner; and
  - (c) may be withdrawn or amended by the Commissioner.

## (Section 13H inserted by section 8 of Act 46 of 2013)

#### 13I. Specialist committees

- (1) The Minister may appoint one or more specialist committees to advise the Commission on the management of its resources or the performance of its functions.
- (2) The Minister may assign specific powers to the members of a specialist committee for the purposes of performing any function contemplated in subsection (1).
- (3) A specialist committee may-
  - be established for an indefinite term or for a period determined by the Minister when the committee is established: and
  - (b) determine its own procedures.
- (4) A specialist committee established under this section must-
  - (a) perform its functions impartially and without fear, favour or prejudice; and
  - (b) consist of-
    - (i) not more than eight persons who are independent from the Commission and are appointed by the Minister for a term of not more than five years; and
    - (ii) not more than two senior employees of the Commission designated by the Commissioner.
- (5) A member of a specialist committee must-
  - (a) be a fit and proper person;
  - (b) have appropriate expertise or experience; and

- (c) have the ability to perform effectively as a member of the committee.
- (6) Members of a specialist committee must not-
  - (a) act in any way that is inconsistent with subsection (4)(a);
  - expose themselves to any situation in which the risk of a conflict may arise between their responsibilities and any personal financial interest; or
  - (c) use their position or any information entrusted to them to enrich themselves or improperly benefit any other person.
- (7) A member of a specialist committee ceases to be a member if-
  - (a) the member resigns from the committee;
  - the Minister terminates the person's membership because the member no longer complies with subsection (5) or has contravened subsection (6); or
  - (c) the member's term of office has expired.
- (8) A member of a specialist committee who has any personal or financial interest in any matter on which the committee gives advice, must disclose that interest and withdraw from the proceedings of the specialist committee when that matter is discussed.
- (9) The Commission must remunerate and compensate-
  - a member contemplated in subsection (4)(b)(i) for expenses incurred to the extent determined by the Minister; and

(b) a member contemplated in subsection (4)(b)(ii) for expenses incurred to the extent that the member's remuneration and allowances as an employee of the Commission does not extend to that person's services as a member of the specialist committee.

(Section 13I inserted by section 8 of Act 46 of 2013)

## 13J. Investigations by Commission

- (1) Subject to the provisions of this Act, the Commission has the power, on its own initiative or on receipt of a complaint in the prescribed form, to investigate any matter arising from the application of the Act, including any B-BBEE initiative or category of B-BBEE initiatives.
- (2) The format and the procedure to be followed in conducting any investigation must be determined by the Commission with due regard to the circumstances of each case, and may include the holding of a formal hearing.
- (3) Without limiting the powers of the Commission, the Commission may make a finding as to whether any B-BBEE initiative involves a fronting practice.
- (4) The Commission may institute proceedings in a court to restrain any breach of this Act, including any fronting practice, or to obtain appropriate remedial relief.
- (5) If the Commission is of the view that any matter it has investigated may involve the commission of a criminal offence in terms of this Act or any other law, it must refer the matter to the National Prosecuting Authority or an appropriate division of the South African Police Service.
- (6) The Commission may, if it has investigated a matter and justifiable reasons exist, refer to-

- (a) the South African Revenue Services any concerns regarding behaviour or conduct that may be prohibited or regulated in terms of legislation within the jurisdiction of that Service; or
- (b) any regulatory authority any concerns regarding behaviour or conduct that may be prohibited or regulated in terms of legislation within the jurisdiction of that regulatory authority.

(7)

- (a) The Commission may publish any finding or recommendation it has made in respect of any investigation which it had conducted in such manner as it may deem fit.
- (b) A decision of the Commission to publish any finding or recommendation it has made may not be put into effect-
- before proceedings for the judicial review of the decision have been completed or were not instituted within the period allowed therefor;
- (ii) if the Commission has referred the matter to the National Prosecuting Authority or the South African Police Service in terms of subsection (5), and no prosecution has been instituted against the person concerned;
- (iii) if the person concerned has been prosecuted and acquitted following the investigation of the Commission; or
- (iv) where the person concerned has been convicted by a court of law, following an investigation of the

Commission, before such person has in respect of the conviction exhausted all recognised legal proceedings pertaining to appeal or review.

(Section 13J inserted by section 8 of Act 46 of 2013)

#### 13K. Summonses

- (1) At any time during an investigation being conducted by the Commission, the Commission may issue a summons to any person who is believed to be able to furnish any information on the subject of the investigation or to have possession or control of any book, document or other object that has a bearing on that subject-
  - (a) to appear before the Commission to be questioned at a time and place specified in the summons; or
  - (b) to deliver or produce to the Commission any book, document or other object referred to in paragraph (a) at a time and place specified in the summons.
- (2) A summons contemplated in subsection (1)-
  - must be signed by the Commissioner or by an employee of the Commission designated by the Commissioner; and
  - (b) may be served in the same manner as a subpoena in a criminal case issued by a magistrates' court.
- (3) If a person is summoned to appear before the Commission, or is required to deliver any book, document or other object to the Commission, the Commissioner or an employee of the Commission designated by the Commissioner-

- (a) may interrogate and administer an oath to, or accept an affirmation from, the person named in the summons; and
- (b) may retain any such book, document or other object for examination for a period not exceeding two months or such longer period as the court on good cause shown, may allow.
- (4) A person questioned by the Commission must answer each question truthfully and to the best of that person's ability, but-
  - (a) is not obliged to answer any question if the answer is self-incriminating; and
  - (b) the person asking the questions must inform that person of the right set out in paragraph (a).
- (5) No self-incriminating answer given or statement made by any person to the Commission will be admissible as evidence against that person in criminal proceedings against that person instituted in any court, except in criminal proceedings for perjury or in which that person is tried for an offence relating to the disclosure of false information, and then only to the extent that the answer or statement is relevant to prove the offence charged.

(Section 13K inserted by section 8 of Act 46 of 2013)

# 13L. Confidential information

- When submitting information to the Commission, a person may claim that all or part of that information is confidential.
- (2) Any claim contemplated in subsection (1) must be supported by a written statement explaining why the information is confidential.

- (3) The Commission must-
  - (a) consider a claim made in terms of subsection (1); and
  - (b) as soon as practicable make a decision on the confidentiality of the information and access to that information and provide written reasons for that decision.
- (4) A person who has made a claim contemplated in subsection (1) in respect of which the Commission has made a decision in terms of subsection (3), may apply to court for a review of that decision within-
  - (a) 60 court days of becoming aware of the decision; or
  - (b) such longer period as a court may allow on good cause shown.
- (5) When making any finding in respect of an investigation, the Commission may take confidential information into account.
- (6) If any finding would reveal any confidential information, the Commission must provide a copy of the proposed finding to the party claiming confidentiality at least 30 court days before publishing those reasons.
- (7) Within 14 court days after receiving a copy of the proposed finding in terms of subsection (6), a party may apply to a court for an appropriate order to protect the confidentiality of the relevant information.

(Section 13L inserted by section 8 of Act 46 of 2013)

# 13M. Conflicting interests of employees

The Commissioner, members of a specialist committee and any person appointed to or contracted with the Commission

to assist the Commission in the carrying out of its functions, must not-

- (a) engage in any activity that may undermine the integrity of the Commission;
- (b) participate in any investigation, hearing or decision concerning a matter in respect of which that person has a personal financial interest;
- (c) make private use of, or profit from, any confidential information obtained as a result of performing that person's official functions in the Commission; or
- (d) divulge any information referred to in paragraph (c) to any third party, except as required as part of that person's official functions within the Commission.

(Section 13M inserted by section 8 of Act 46 of 2013)

#### 13N. Offences in connection with Commission

- (1) It is an offence to disclose any confidential information concerning the affairs of any person obtained-
  - (a) in carrying out any function in terms of this Act; or
  - (b) as a result of initiating a complaint with the Commission, or participating in any proceedings in terms of this Act.
- (2) Subsection (1) does not apply to information disclosed-
  - (a) for the purpose of the proper administration or enforcement of this Act;
  - (b) for the purpose of the proper administration of justice;

- at the request of the Commission or a court entitled to receive the information; or
- (d) when required to do so by any court under any law.
- (3) A person commits an offence if that person-
  - hinders, obstructs or improperly attempts to influence the Commission when it is exercising a power or performing a duty in terms of this Act;
  - does anything calculated to improperly influence the Commission concerning any matter connected with an investigation by the Commission;
  - (c) knowingly provides false information to the Commission;
  - (d) anticipates any findings of the Commission in a way that is calculated to improperly influence the proceedings or findings;
  - does anything in connection with an investigation of the Commission that would have been contempt of court if the proceedings had occurred in a court of law; or
  - (f) refuses to attend when summoned or, after attending, refuses to answer any question or produce any document as required by the summons, other than as contemplated in section 13K(4)(a).

(Section 13N inserted by section 8 of Act 46 of 2013)

# 130. Other offences and penalties

(1) A person commits an offence if that person knowingly-

- misrepresents or attempts to misrepresent the broadbased black economic empowerment status of an enterprise;
- (b) provides false information or misrepresents information to a B-BBEE verification professional in order to secure a particular broad-based black economic empowerment status or any benefit associated with the compliance with this Act;
- (c) provides false information or misrepresents information relevant to assessing the broad-based black economic empowerment status of an enterprise to any organ of state or public entity; or
- (d) engages in a fronting practice.
- (2) A B-BBEE verification professional or any procurement officer or other official of an organ of state or public entity who becomes aware of the commission of, or any attempt to commit, any offence referred to in subsection (1) and fails to report it to an appropriate law enforcement agency, is guilty of an offence.
- (3) Any person convicted of an offence in terms of this Act, is liable-
  - (a) in the case of a contravention of subsection (1), to a fine or to imprisonment for a period not exceeding 10 years or to both a fine and such imprisonment or, if the convicted person is not a natural person, to a fine not exceeding 10 per cent of its annual turnover; or
  - (b) in the case of a contravention of subsection (2) or section 13N, to a fine or to imprisonment for a period not exceeding 12 months or to both a fine and such imprisonment.

- (4) For the purpose of determining a fine to be imposed for an offence in terms of subsection (1), the court must take into account the value of the transaction which was derived from, or sought to be derived from, the commission of the offence.
- (5) A court in which any person is convicted of an offence in terms of subsection (3) must report the conviction-
  - (a) to the B-BBEE Verification Professional Regulator, if that person is a B-BBEE verification professional; and
  - (b) to in any other case, to the Council and to that person's employer.
- (6) Despite anything to the contrary contained in any other law, a magistrates' court has jurisdiction to impose any penalty provided for in this Act.

(Section 130 inserted by section 8 of Act 46 of 2013)

# 13P. Prohibition on business with organs of state following conviction under this Act

- (1) Any person convicted of an offence in terms of this Act may not, for a period of 10 years from the date of conviction, contract or transact any business with any organ of state or public entity and must for that purpose be entered into the register of tender defaulters which the National Treasury may maintain for that purpose.
- (2) Where the convicted person is not a natural person, the court may in its discretion restrict the order contemplated in subsection (1) to only those members, directors or shareholders who contravened the provisions of this Act.

(Section 13P inserted by section 8 of Act 46 of 2013)

# 14. Regulations, guidelines and practice notes

- (1) The Minister may make regulations with regard to-
  - any matter that in terms of this Act may or must be prescribed;
  - (b) the lodging of complaints with the Commission;
  - (c) the conducting of investigations by the Commission;
  - (d) the information that any organ of state, public entity or private enterprise is required to provide to the Commission and the form and period of such reporting;
  - (e) requiring all broad-based black economic empowerment transactions above a prescribed threshold to be reported to the Commission; and
  - (f) any ancillary or incidental administrative or procedural matter that it is necessary to prescribe for the proper implementation and administration of this Act.
- (2) The Minister may by notice in the Gazette issue guidelines and practice notes relating to the interpretation and application of this Act.

(Section 14 substituted by section 9 of Act 46 of 2013)

# 15. Short title and commencement

This Act is called the Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act, 2003, and comes into operation on a date to be determined by the President by proclamation in the *Gazette*.

#### GENERAL NOTICE

#### **NOTICE 1019 OF 2013**

#### DEPARTMENT OF TRADE AND INDUSTRY

- I. Dr Rob Davies. Minister of Trade and Industry. hereby:
- (a) Issue the following Codes of Good Practice (the codes) under section 9 (1) of the Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act, 2003 (Act No. 53 of 2003); and
- (b) Determine that these Codes will come into operation within twelve (12) months from date of this publication.

Dr ROB D VIES, MP

MINISTER OF TRADE AND INDUSTRY

DATE: 2/10/2013

# STATEMENT 000: GENERAL PRINCIPLES AND THE GENERIC SCORECARD

# Issued under section 9 of the Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act of 2003

# Arrangement of this statement:

Para	Subject	Page
1	Objectives of this statement	47
2	Key principles	47
3	Application of the Codes	48
4	Eligibility as an Exempted Micro Enterprise	51
5	Eligibility as a Qualifying Small Enterprise	52
6	Start-up enterprises	53
7	The Element of B-BBEE in terms of Generic	
	Scorecard	53
8	Generic Scorecard	54
9	Enhanced recognition for certain categories or	f Black
	People	56
10	Transitional Period	56
11	Adjustment of Threshold	56
12	Duration of the Codes	57

### 1 OBJECTIVES OF THIS STATEMENT

- 1.1 Specify the interpretative principles of Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment (B-BBEE);
- 1.2 Specify the application of the Codes and the basis for measurement under the Codes;
- 1.3 Indicate the qualifying thresholds for Measured Entity to qualify as Exempted Micro-Enterprises (EME) or Qualifying Small Enterprises (QSE);
- 1.4 Specify the method of measuring Start-Up Enterprises;
- Specify the elements of B-BBEE measurable under the Generic Scorecard and Qualifying Small Enterprises;
- 1.6 Specify the basis for determining compliance by Entities with the Codes; and
- 1.7 Provide for the Transitional Period before the compulsory use of the Generic and Qualifying Small Enterprise Scorecard starts.

### 2. KEY PRINCIPLES

- 2.1 The fundamental principle for measuring B-BBEE compliance is that substance takes precedence over legal form.
- 2.2 In interpreting the provisions of the Codes any reasonable interpretation consistent with the objectives of the B-BBEE Act as amended and the B-BBEE Strategy must take precedence.
- 2.3 The basis for measuring B-BBEE initiatives under the Codes is the B-BBEE compliance of the Measured Entity at the Date of Measurement.

- 2.4 Any misrepresentation or attempt to misrepresent a Measured Entity's true B-BBEE Status will be dealt with in accordance with the provisions as set out in the B-BBEE Act as amended, and may lead to the disqualification of the entire scorecard of the entities concerned.
- 2.5 Initiatives which split, separate or divide a Measured Entity as a means of ensuring eligibility as an Exempted Micro-Enterprise, a Qualifying Small Enterprise or a Start-Up Enterprise may constitute an offence and will be dealt with in accordance with the provisions as set out in the B-BBEE Act as amended.
- 2.6 Any representation made by an Entity about its B-BBEE compliance must be supported by suitable evidence or documentation. A Measured Entity that does not provide evidence or documentation supporting any initiative must not receive any recognition for that initiative.
- 2.7 Wherever a Standard Valuation Method applies to measuring an indicator, the same standard should apply, as far as reasonably possible, consistently in all other applicable calculations in this statement.

# 3. APPLICATION OF THE CODES

- 3.1 The following Entities are measurable under the Codes:
- 3.1.1 all Organs of State and Public Entities;
- 3.1.2 all Measured Entities that undertake any economic activity with all Organs of State and Public Entities;
- 3.1.3 any other Measured Entity that undertakes any economic activity, whether direct or indirect, with any

other Measured Entity that is subject to measurement under paragraph 3.1.1 to 3.1.2 and which is seeking to establish its own B-BBEE compliance.

- 3.2 The basis for measuring the B-BBEE compliance of an Entity in terms of paragraph 3.1 is:
- 3.2.1 Paragraph 4, in the case of an Exempted Micro-Enterprise;
- 3.2.2 The Generic Scorecard and QSE Scorecard, in the case of other Measured Entities.
- 3.2.3 A Measured Entity in a sector in respect of which a sector code has been issued in terms of Section 9 of the B-BBEE Act as amended, may only be measured for compliance in accordance with that code.

# 3.3 PRIORITY ELEMENTS, SUB-MINIMUM AND DISCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

3.3.1 The Priority Elements are as follows:

### **3.3.1.1** Ownership:

3.3.1.1.1 The sub-minimum requirement for Ownership is 40% of Net Value(40% of the 8 points) based on the Time Based Graduation Factor as provided in Annexe 100 (E).

# 3.3.1.2 Skills Development:

3.3.1.2.1 The sub-minimum requirement for Skills Development is 40% of the total weighting points for Skills Development.

### 3.3.1.3 Enterprise and Supplier Development:

3.3.1.3.1 The sub-minimum requirement for Enterprise and Supplier Development is 40% for each of the three categories, within the Enterprise and Supplier Development element, namely preferential procurement; Supplier development and Enterprise development.

#### 3.3.2 COMPLIANCE TO PRIORITY ELEMENTS

- 3.3.2.1 A Large Enterprise is required to comply with all the Priority Elements;
- 3.3.2.2 A Qualifying Small Enterprise is required to comply with Ownership as a compulsory element, and either Skills Development or Enterprise and Supplier Development.

#### 3.3.3 DISCOUNTING PRINCIPLE EFFECT

- 3.3.3.1 Non-compliance with the 40% sub-minimum requirements of any of the priority elements, as per paragraph 3.4.2 above, will result in the following outcomes for both Large Enterprises and Qualifying Small Enterprises:
- 3.4.3.1.1.1 The actual points scored by the Measured Entity and the consequent level that the Measured Entity would have achieved were it not for non-compliance with the 40% sub-minimum requirements will be recognised by the Verification Agency ("the Recognition Level");
- 3.4.3.1.12. Notwithstanding the recognition in 3.4.3.1.1 above, the Measured Entity's 8-BBEE status level will be discounted by one level down until the next applicable verification period in which the Measured Entity can demonstrate compliance with the 40% sub-minimum requirements, at which point the Recorded Level will

become the applicable rating level for that Measured Entity in that verification period.

3.4 The requirement to submit data to the Department of Labour under the Employment Equity Act 55 of 1998 is only applicable to 'designated employers' who employ 50 or more employees. However, for the purpose of measurement for both Generic and Qualifying Small Entities that employ less than 50 employees are required to submit sufficient evidence for verification purposes.

# 4. ELIGIBILITY AS AN EXEMPTED MICRO-ENTERPRISE (EME)

- 4.1 Any enterprise with an annual Total Revenue of R10 Million or less qualifies as an Exempted Micro-Enterprise.
- 4.2 An Exempted Micro-Enterprise is deemed to have a B-BBEE Status of "Level Four Contributor" having a B-BBEE recognition level of 100% under paragraph 8.2.
- 4.3 Enhanced 8-BBEE recognition level for an Exempted Micro-Enterprise:
- 4.3.1 Despite paragraphs 4.2 an EME, which is 100% Black owned qualifies for elevation to "Level One Contributor" having a B-BBEE recognition level of 135%.
- 4.3.2 Despite paragraph 4.2 and 4.3.1, an EME which is at least 51%Black owned qualifies for elevation to "Level Two Contributor" having a B-BBEE recognition level of 125%.
- 4.4 Despite paragraphs 4.2 and 4.3, an EME is allowed to be measured in terms of the QSE scorecard should they wish to maximise their points and move to a higher B-BBEE recognition level.

- 45 An EME is only required to obtain a sworn affidavit on an annual basis, confirming the following: 4.5.1 Annual Total Revenue of R10 million or less: and Level of Black ownership. 452 46 Any misrepresentation in terms of Para 4.5 above constitutes a criminal offence as set out in the R-RRFF Act as amended. 5. **ELIGIBILITY AS A QUALIFYING SMALL ENTERPRISES** (QSE) 5.1 A Measured Entity with an annual Total Revenue of between R10 million and R50 million qualifies as a Qualifying Small Enterprise. 5.2 A QSE must comply with all of the elements of B-BBEE for the purposes of measurement. 5.3 Enhanced B-BBEE recognition level for QSE: 5.3.1A Qualifying Small Enterprise which is 100% Black owned qualifies for a Level One B-BBEE recognition. 5.3.2 A QSE which is at least 51% Black owned gualifies for Level Two B-BBEE recognition level. 5.3.3 A QSE is only required to obtain a sworn affidavit on an annual basis, confirming the following: 5.3.3.1 Annual Total Revenue of R50 million or less; and
- 5.4 Any misrepresentation in terms of Para 5.3 above constitutes a criminal offence as set out in the B-BBEE Act as amended.

Level of Black ownership.

5.3.3.2

#### 6. START-UP ENTERPRISES

- 6.1 Start-up Enterprise must be measured as an Exempted Micro-Enterprise under this statement for the first year following their formation or incorporation. This provision applies regardless of the expected total revenue of the Start-up Enterprise.
- 6.2 Start-up Enterprise is deemed to have the qualifying B-BBEE Status in accordance with the principles of paragraph 4 of this Statement.
- 6.3 In order to qualify as a Start-up Enterprise, the enterprise must provide an independent confirmation of its status in accordance with paragraph 4.5.
- 6.4 Despite paragraph 6.1 and 6.2, a Start-up Enterprise must submit a QSE scorecard when tendering for any contract, or seeking any other economic activity covered by Section 10 of the Act, with a value higher than R10 million but less than R50 million. For contracts of R50 million or more they should submit the Generic scorecard. The preparation of such scorecards must use annualised data.

#### 7. The GENERIC SCORECARD

- 7.1 The Ownership Element, as set out in Code series 100, measures effective ownership of entities by Black people.
- 7.2 The Management Control element, as set out in Code series 200, measures the effective control of entities by Black people.
- 7.3 The Skills Development element, as set out in Code series 300, measures the extent to which employers

carry out initiatives designed to develop the competencies of Black employees and Black people internally and externally

- 7.4 The Enterprise and Supplier Development element, as set out in Code Series 400, measures the extent to which entities buy goods and services from Empowering Suppliers with strong B-BBEE recognition levels. This element also measures the extent to which enterprises carry out supplier development and enterprise development initiatives intended to assist and accelerate the growth and sustainability of black enterprises.
- 7.5 The Socio-Economic Development and Sector Specific Contributions element, as set out in Code series 500, measures the extent to which entities carry out initiatives that contribute towards Socio-Economic Development or Sector Specific initiatives that promote access to the economy for Black people.

### 8. The B-BBEE GENERIC SCORECARD

8.1 The following table represents the B-BBEE Generic Scorecard

Element	Weighting	Code series reference
Ownership	25 points	100
Management Control	15 points	200
Skills Development	20 points	300
Enterprise and Supplier Development	40 points	400
Socio-Economic Development	5 points	500

# 8.2 B-BBEE RECOGNITION LEVELS

8.2.1 Based on the overall performance of a Measured Entity using the Generic Scorecard and Qualifying Scorecard Enterprise Scorecard, the Measured Entity will receive one of the following B-BBEE Status uses with the corresponding B-BBEE recognition level:

B-BBEE Status	Qualification	B-BBEE recognition level
Level One Contributor	≥100 points on the Generic Scorecard	135%
Level Two Contributor	≥95 but <100 points on the Generic Scorecard	125%
Level Three Contributor	≥90 but <95 points on the Generic Scorecard	110%
Level Four Contributor	≥ 80 but <90 points on the Generic Scorecard	100%
Level Five Contributor	≥ 75 but <80 points on the Generic Scorecard	80%
Level Six Contributor	≥.70 but <75 points on the Generic Scorecard	60%
Level Seven Contributor	≥55 but <70 points on the Generic Scorecard	50%
Level Eight Contributor	> 40 but <55 points on the Generic Scorecard	10%
Non-Compliant Contributor	>40 points on the Generic Scorecard	0%

# 9. ENHANCED RECOGNITION FOR CERTAIN CATEGORIES OF BLACK PEOPLE

- 9.1 Throughout the Codes, various criteria appear which advance the interests of certain Categories of Black people. This include:
- 9.1.1 Black women, should form between 40% and 50% of the beneficiaries of the relevant Elements of the Scorecard;
- 9.1.2 Black people with disabilities, Black youth, Black people living in rural areas and Black unemployed people form part of the beneficiaries of the relevant Elements of the Scorecard.

#### 10. TRANSITIONAL PERIOD

- 10.1 For the first year after the Gazette of this Statement, a Measured Entity may elect to use:
- 10.2 The Amended Codes of Good Practice; or
- 10.3 The Generic Scorecard in Code series 000, Statement 000 issued on 9 February 2007, notwithstanding the repeal of that Statement.
- 10.4 Thereafter the first year, as per paragraph 10.1, all B-BBEE compliance measurement will be in accordance with this Statement.

### 11. ADJUSTMENT OF THRESHOLDS

The Minister may, by notice in the Gazette, adjust the thresholds in paragraphs 4 to 6. Any such changes apply to compliance reports prepared for a Measured Entity after a 12 month period following the gazetting of the adjustment.

# 12. DURATION OF THE B-BBEE CODES

- 12.1 A Code remains in effect until amended, substituted or repealed under Section 9 of the Act.
- 12.2 The Minister may review the Codes at any stage, and regular reviews will take place to monitor the implementation of B-BBEE throughout the economy.

# AMENDED CODE SERIES 100: MEASUREMENT OF THE OWNERSHIP ELEMENT OF BROAD-BASED BLACK ECONOMIC EMPOWERMENT

# STATEMENT 100: THE GENERAL PRINCIPLES FOR MEASURING OWNERSHIP

Issued under section 9 of the Broad-Based
Black Economic Empowerment Act of 2003

# Arrangement of this statement

Para	Subject	Page
1.	Objectives of this statement	59
2.	The Ownership Scorecard	59
3.	Key measurement principles	61
4. [sic]	Sub-minimum and discounting principle	
5. [sic]	Broad-based ownership schemes and employee share ownership plans	
6. [sic]	Private equity funds	
7. [sic]	Section 21 companies and companies limited by guarantee	
8. [sic]	Trusts	
9. [sic]	Options and share warrants	
10. [sic]	Equity Instruments carrying preference rights	
11.	Annexe 100 (A)	73
12.	Annexe 100 (B)	74
13.	Annexe 100 (C)	76
14.	Annexe 100 (D)	78
15.	Annexe 100 (E)	80

#### 1 OBJECTIVES OF THIS STATEMENT

- 1.1 specify the scorecard for measuring the Ownership Element of Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment (B-BBEE);
- 1.2 define the key measurement principles;
- 1.3 specify the specific measurement principles applicable to various types of Entities;
- 1.4 specify the specific measurement principles applicable to various
- specify the formula for measuring Voting Rights,
   Economic Interest, and Realisation points.

#### 2 THE OWNERSHIP SCORECARD

The following table represents the indicators and methods for calculating a score for Ownership under this statement:

B-BBEE Element	Indicator	Description	Weight- ing Points	Com- pliance Target
Ownership	2.1 Voting Rights	2.1.1 Exercisable Voting Rights in the Entity in the hands of Black people	4	25%+ 1 Vote
	2.2 Economic Interest	2.1.2 Exercisable Voting Rights in the Entity in the hands of Black women	2	10%
		2.2.1 Economic Interest in the Entity to which Black people are entitled	4	25%
		2.2.2 Economic Interest in the Entity to which Black women are entitled	2	10%
		2.2.3 Economic Interest ing Black natural people in the		
		2.2.3.1Black designated groups; 2.2.3.2 Black participants in Employee Share Ownership Programmes; 2.2.3.3 Black people in Broadbased Ownership Schemes; 2.2.3.4Black participants in Cooperatives	3	3%
		2.2.4 New Entrants	2	2%
	2.3 Realisation Points	2.3.1 Net Value	8	Refer to Annexe C

#### 3 KEY MEASUREMENT PRINCIPLES

## 3.1 General principles:

- 3.1.1 An Entity receives points for participation by Black people in its rights of Ownership, using the Ownership scorecard in paragraph 2. Black people may hold their rights of Ownership in a Measured Entity as Direct Participants or as Participants through some form of Entity such as:
- 3.1.1.1 a Company as defined in the Companies Act of 2008·(as amended);
- 3.1.1.2 a Close corporation;
- 3.1.1.3 a Co-operative;
- 3.1.1.4 a Trust;
- 3.1.1.5 a Broad-Based Ownership Scheme;
- 3.1.1.6 an Employee Share Ownership Programme;
- 3.1.1.7 a partnership or other association of natural persons; and
- 3.1.1.8 any form of juristic person recognised under South
  African law

### 3.2 SUB-MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS

- 3.2.1 A Measured Entity is required to achieve a minimum of 40% on Net Value points (i.e. 8 points) based on Annexe 100 (E) paragraph 4 of this statement.
- 3.2.2 Non-compliance with this sub-minimum target, as per paragraph 3.2.1, will result in the achieved B-BBEE status level being discounted in accordance with paragraph 3.4 in statement 000.

### 3.3 FLOW-THROUGH PRINCIPLE

- 3.3.1 As a general principle, when measuring the rights of Ownership of any category of Black people in a Measured Entity, only rights held by natural persons are relevant. If the rights of Ownership of Black people pass through a juristic person, then the rights of Ownership of Black people in that juristic person are measurable. This principle applies across every tier of Ownership in a multi-tiered chain of Ownership until that chain ends with a Black person holding rights of Ownership.
- 3.3.2 The method of applying the Flow-Through Principle across one or more intervening juristic persons is as follows:
- 3.3.2.1 Multiply the percentage of the Participant's rights of Ownership in the juristic persons through which those rights pass by the percentage rights of Ownership of each of those juristic persons successively to the Measured Entity; and
- 3.3.2.2 The result of this calculation represents the percentage of rights of Ownership held by the Participant.

# 3.4 MODIFIED FLOW-THROUGH PRINCIPLE

- 3.4.1 A Measured Entity applying this Modified Flow-Through Principle cannot benefit from the Exclusion Principle.
- 3.4.2 The Modified Flow-Through Principle applies to B-BBEE owned or controlled company in the Ownership of the Measured Entity.

- 3.4.3 In calculating Exercisable Voting Rights under paragraph2.1.1, and Economic Interest under paragraph 2.2.1 ofthe Ownership scorecard the following applies:
- 3.4.3.1 Where in the chain of Ownership, Black people have a flow-through level of participation of at least 51%, and then only once in the entire ownership structure of the Measured Entity, such Black participation may be treated as if it were 100% Black.
- 3.4.4 The Modified Flow-Through Principle may only be applied in the calculation of the indicators in paragraphs 2.1.1 and 2.2.1 of the Ownership scorecard. In all other instances, the Flow-Through Principle applies.

# 3.5 EXCLUSION OF SPECIFIED ENTITIES WHEN DETERMINING OWNERSHIP

- 3.5.1 When determining Ownership in a Measured Entity, Ownership held by Organs of State or Public Entities must be excluded.
- 3.5.2 Exclusion of Ownership held by the Organs of State or Public Entities is to be effected before any other Ownership discounting methods are to be applied.
- 3.5.3 In calculating their Ownership score, Measured Entities must apply the Exclusion Principle to any portion of their Ownership held by Organs of State or Public Entities.

### 3.6 B-BBEE FACILITATOR STATUS

3.6.1 Despite paragraphs 3.5.1 and 3.5.3 above, the Minister may by notice in the Gazette, designate certain Organs of State or Public Entities as B-BBEE Facilitators. In calculating their Ownership score, Measured Entities

must treat B-BBEE Facilitators as having rights of Ownership held:

- 3.6.1.1 100% by Black people;
- 3.6.1.2 40% by Black women;
- 3.6.1.3 20% by Black designated groups;
- 3.6.1.4 Without any acquisition debts; and
- 3.6.1.5 Without any third-party rights.

### 3.7 MANDATED INVESTMENTS

- 3.7.1 When determining Ownership in a Measured Entity, rights of Ownership of Mandated Investments may be excluded.
- 3.7.2 The maximum percentage of the Ownership of any Measured Entity that may be so excluded is 40%.
- 3.7.3 A Measured Entity electing not to exclude Mandated Investments when it is entitled to do so, may either treat all of that Ownership as non-Black or obtain a competent person's report estimating the extent of Black rights of Ownership measurable in the Measured Entity and originating from that Mandated Investments.
- 3.7.4 A Measured Entity cannot selectively include or exclude Mandated Investments and therefore an election to exclude one Mandated Investment is an election to exclude all Mandated Investments and visa versa.
- 3.7.5 A Measured Entity applying the Exclusion Principle to Mandated Investments cannot benefit from the Modified Flow-Through Principle.

# 3.8 RECOGNITION OF OWNERSHIP AFTER THE SALE OR LOSS OF SHARES BY BLACK PARTICIPANTS

- 3.8.1 A Measured Entity is allowed to recognise a portion of Black Ownership after a Black participant has exited through the sale or loss of shares subject to the following criteria:
- 3.8.1.1 the Black participant has held shares for a minimum period of 3 years;
- 3.8.1.2 net value based on the Time Based Graduation Factor as per annexe 100 'E' must have been created in the hands of Black people; and
- 3.8.1.3 transformation has taken place within the Measured Entity using the B-BBEE Recognition Level from the period of entry of black participants to the exciting period.
- 3.8.2 Black participation arising from the continued recognition of Black Ownership cannot contribute more than 40% of the score on the Ownership scorecard.
- 3.8.3 In the case of a sale or loss of shares by the Black participant, the following additional rules apply:
- 3.8.3.1 a written tripartite agreement between the Measured Entity, the Black participant and a lender must record the loan or security arrangement unless the Measured Entity is the lender; and
- 3.8.3.2 the period over which the continued recognition points are allocated or recognised after sale or loss of shares will not exceed the period over which the shares were held.

- 3.8.4 The Ownership points under this paragraph that are attributable to the Measured Entity will be calculated by multiplying the following elements:
- 3.8.4.1 the value created in the hands of Black participants as a percentage of the total value of the Black participants' shareholding in the Measured Entity at the date of sale or loss of shares;
- 3.8.4.2 the B-BBEE status of the Measured Entity based on the balanced scorecard at the Date of Measurement; and
- 3.8.4.3 the Ownership points that were attributable to the Measured Entity on the date of sale or loss shares.

# 3.9 BROAD-BASED OWNERSHIP SCHEMES AND EMPLOYEE SHARE OWNERSHIP PROGRAMME

- 3.9.1 Black participants in Broad-Based Ownership Schemes and Employee Share Ownership Programmes holding rights of Ownership in a Measured Entity may contribute:
- 3.9.1.1 a maximum of 40% of the total points on the Ownership scorecard of the Measured Entity if they meet the qualification criteria set out in Annexe 100(B) and Annexe 100 (C).
- 3.9.1.2 100% of the total points on the Ownership scorecard of the Measured Entity if they meet the additional qualification criteria set out in Annexe 100(B) and Annexe 100 (C).

# 3.10 PRIVATE EQUITY FUNDS

3.10.1 A Measured Entity may treat any of its Ownership arising from a Private Equity Fund as if that Ownership

were held by Black people, where the Private Equity Fund meets the following criteria:

- 3.10.1.1 At least 51% of any of the Private Equity Managers'
  Exercisable Voting Rights associated with the Equity
  Instruments through which the Private Equity Fund
  holds rights of Ownership, must be held by Black
  people;
- 3.10.1.2 At least 51% of the Private Equity Fund's Executive Management and Senior Management must be Black people;
- 3.10.1.3 At least 51% of the profits made by the Private Equity Fund Manager after realising any investment made by it, must by written agreement, accrue to Black people;
- 3.10.2 The term profit in this instance is deemed as profit from the operations of the Private Equity Fund Manager and the carried interest that the Private Equity Fund Manager (and/or its associated entities, provided that at least 51% of the profits of the associated entities accrue to the Private Equity Fund Manager) receives after realising any investment made by it;
- 3.10.3 The Private Equity Fund Manager must be a B-BBEE owned company as defined;
- 3.10.4 The Private Equity Fund Manager must seek to invest at least 51% of the value of funds under management in companies that have at least a 25% direct Black shareholding using the Flow Through Principle;
- 3.10.5 The Private Equity Fund Manager can facilitate direct
  Black shareholding at the time of entering into the
  transaction should the target company not meet the

requirement of at least 25% Black shareholding at the time that the transaction is concluded:

- 3.10.6 This determination will be made at each measurement date and the status given to the Private Equity Fund Manager will be applicable for a period of 12 months; the later of 11 October 2014 and the date of establishment of a new fund;
- 3.10.8 Within one year from the commencement date, more than 5% of the value of funds invested by the Private Equity Fund must at all times be invested in enterprises that have at least 25% direct Black shareholding;
- 3.10.9 Within two years from the commencement date, more than 10% of the value of funds invested by the Private Equity Fund must at all times be invested in enterprises that have at least 25% direct Black shareholding;
- 3.10.10 From the first day of the third year and the last day of the fourth year from the commencement date, more than 20% of the value of funds invested by the Private Equity Fund must at all times be invested in enterprises that have at least 25% direct Black shareholding;
- 3.10.11 From the first day of the fifth year and the last day of the sixth year from the commencement date, more than 30% of the value of the funds invested by the Private Equity Fund must at all times be invested in enterprises that have at least 25% direct Black shareholding;
- 3.10.12 From the first of the seventh year and the last day of the eight-year from the commencement date, more than 40% of the value of the funds invested by the Private Equity Fund must at all times be invested in

the enterprises that have at least 25% direct Black shareholding;

- 3.10.13 From the first day of the ninth year and beyond from the commencement date, at least 51% of the value of the funds invested by the Private Equity Fund must at all times be invested in enterprises that have at least 25% direct Black shareholding;
- 3.10.14 It should be noted that the measurement of at least 51% of the value of funds invested by any Private Equity Fund that must be invested in enterprises with at least 25% direct Black shareholding is to be measured with reference to the cost of the investment made by the Private Equity Fund;
- 3.10.15 In the case of Private Equity Funds that were fully invested prior to 11 October 2014, investments by the fund managers will be considered as being made by Black people if the Private Equity Fund Management entities meet the following criteria:
- 3.10.15.1 At least 51% of any of the Private Equity Fund Manager's Exercisable Voting Rights associated with the Equity Instruments through which the Private Equity Fund holds rights of ownership in a Measured Entity, must be held by Black people;
- 3.10.15.2 At least 51% of the profits accruing to the Private Equity
  Fund Manager after realising any investment made by
  it, must by written agreement, accrue to Black people;
  and
- 3.10.15.3 Private Equity Fund Manager must be a B-BBEE owned company.

# 3.11 SECTION 2 COMPANIES AND COMPANIES LIMITED BY GUARANTEE

- 3.11.1 A Measured Entity may elect to include or exclude Section 21 companies or companies limited by guarantee for the purposes of measuring Ownership in terms of this statement:
- 3.11.2 A Section 21 company or company limited by guarantee that houses a Broad-Based Ownership Scheme or an Employee Ownership Scheme is subject to the provisions governing those types of schemes and not to this paragraph;
- 3.11.3 When a Measured Entity elects to exclude such companies, it can do so by excluding up to 40% of the level of their Ownership completely from the determination of its compliance with the Ownership target;
- 3.11.4 A Measured Entity electing not to exclude Section 21 companies or companies limited by guarantee when it is entitled to do so, may either treat all of that Ownership as non-Black or obtain a competent person's report estimating the extent of Black rights of Ownership measurable in the Measured Entity and originating from those Section 21 companies or companies limited by guarantee; and
- 3.11.5 Black participants in a Section 21 Company or a company limited by guarantee holding rights of Ownership in a Measured Entity may contribute:
- 3.11.6 A maximum of 40% of the total points on the Ownership scorecard of the Measured Entity if they meet the qualification criteria for Broad-Based

Ownership Schemes and Employee Share Ownership Programmes set out in Annexe 100(B) and Annexe 100 (C) respectively.

3.11.7 100% of the total points on the Ownership scorecard of the Measured Entity if they meet the additional qualification criteria set out for Broad-Based Ownership Schemes and Employee Share Ownership Programmes in Annexe 100(B) and Annexe 100 (C) respectively.

#### 3.12 TRUSTS

- 3.12.1 Black participants in a Trust holding rights of Ownership in a Measured Entity may contribute:
- 3.12.1.1 A maximum of 40% of the total points on the Ownership scorecard of the Measured Entity if the Trust meets the qualification criteria for Trusts set out in Annexe 100(0).
- 3.12.1.2 100% of the total points on the Ownership scorecard of the Measured Entity if the Trust meets the additional qualification criteria set out for Trusts in Annexe 100(0).

### 3.13 OPTIONS AND SHARE WARRANTS

- 3.13.1 Exercisable Voting Rights and Economic Interest will be recognised where a Participant holds an instrument granting the holder the right to acquire an Equity Instrument or part thereof at a future date if the following requirements are met:
- 3.13.2 The Exercisable Voting Rights attached to that instrument are irrevocably transferred to the holder for the option period and are exercisable by the holder before acquiring the Equity Instrument;

3.13.4 The Value of the instrument must be determined by using a Standard Valuation Method for calculating the Net Value.

# 3.14 EQUITY INSTRUMENTS CARRYING PREFERENCE RIGHTS

- 3.14.1 An Equity Instrument carrying Preferential Rights is measurable in the same manner as an ordinary Equity Instrument.
- 3.14.2 An Equity Instrument carrying Preferential Rights that have the characteristics of debt, regardless of whether the debt is that of an Entity or a Participant, must be treated as an ordinary loan. If the debt is that of a Black Participant, it may be subject to measurement under Net Value.
- 3.14.3 In evaluating an instrument that has a hybrid nature including the characteristics of a debt, only that portion that represents a debt, will be measured under current equity interest. The remainder is measurable as an ordinary equity instrument.

# ANNEXE 100 (A)

# **EXAMPLES OF MANDATED INVESTMENTS**

Description of Investment	Portion Subject to Exclusion Principle
Investments made by or for a South African collective investment	full value
scheme as defined in the Collective	
Investments Scheme Control Act of	
2002 of South Africa	
Investments made by or for a South	full value
African pension fund as defined	
in the Pension Fund Act of 1956 of	
South Africa	
Investments made by or for a South	portion recorded as made
African medical scheme as defined in	out of member's funds
the Medical Schemes Act of 1998 of	
South Africa out of member's funds	
Investments made by or for South	portion recorded as made
African long- term insurers as	out of policyholder funds
defined in the Long-Term Insurance	
Act of 1998 of South Africa out of	
policyholder funds	
Investments made by or for a	full value
friendly society as defined in the	
Friendly Societies Act of 1956 of South	
Africa	

Description of Investment	Portion Subject to Exclusion Principle
Investments made by or for a South African bank as defined in the Banks	depositor portion determined by apportioning
Act of 1990 of South Africa out of	investment in the ratio that
depositor funds as opposed to own	depositor funds to own
reserves	reserves

### **ANNEXE 100 (B)**

### 1. RULES FOR BROAD-BASED OWNERSHIP SCHEMES

- 1.1.1 the management fees of the scheme must not exceed 15%;
- 1.1.2 the constitution of the scheme must record the rules governing any portion of Economic Interest received and reserved for future distribution or application;
- 1.1.3 the constitution of the scheme must define the Participants and the proportion of their claim to receive distributions;
- 1.1.4 a written record of the name of the Participants or the use of a defined class of natural person satisfies the requirement for identification;
- 1.1.5 a written record of fixed percentages of claim or the use of a formula for calculating claims satisfies the need for defining proportion of benefit; and
- 1.1.6 the fiduciaries of the scheme must have no discretion on the above-mentioned terms;
- 1.1.7 at least 85% of the value of benefits allocated by the scheme must accrue to Black people;

- 1.1.8 at least 50% of the fiduciaries of the scheme must be independent persons having no employment with or direct or indirect beneficial interest in the scheme;
- 1.1.9 at least 50% of the fiduciaries of the scheme must be Black people and at least 25% must be Black women;
- 1.1.10 the chairperson of the scheme must be independent;
- 1.1.11. the constitution, or other relevant statutory documents, of the scheme, must be available, on request, to any Participant in an official language in which that person is familiar;
- 1.1.12 the scheme fiduciaries must present the financial reports of the scheme to Participants yearly at an annual general meeting of the scheme; and
- 1.1.13 on winding-up or termination of the scheme, all accumulated Economic Interest must be transferred to the beneficiaries or an entity with similar objectives.

## 2. ADDITIONAL CRITERIA APPLICABLE TO BROAD-BASED OWNERSHIP SCHEMES

- 2.1 for a Measured Entity to obtain the maximum points on its Ownership scorecard, the following additional requirements must be met by a Broad-Based Ownership Scheme:
- 2.1.1 a track-record of operating as a Broad-Based Ownership
  Scheme, or in the absence of such a track-record
  demonstrable evidence of full operational capacity to
  operate as a Broad-Based Ownership Scheme; and

2.2 operational capacity must be evidenced by suitably qualified and experienced staff in sufficient number, experienced professional advisors, operating premises, and all other necessary requirements for operating a business.

### ANNEXE 100 (C)

# 2.3 RULES FOR EMPLOYEE SHARE OWNERSHIP PROGRAMMES

- 2.4 The following rules apply to Employee Share Ownership Programmes:
- 2.4.1 the constitution of the scheme must define the Participants and the proportion of their claim to receive distributions;
- 2.4.2 a written record of the name of the Participants or the use of a defined class of natural person satisfies the requirement for identification;
- 2.4.3 a written record of fixed percentages of claim or the use of a formula for calculating claims satisfies the need for defining proportion of benefit; and
- 2.4.4 the fiduciaries of the scheme must have no discretion on the above-mentioned terms; and
- 2.5 The Participants must take part in:
- 2.5.1 appointing at least 50% of the fiduciaries of the scheme;
- 2.5.2 managing the scheme at a level similar to the management role of shareholders in a company having shareholding;

- 2.5.3 the constitution, or other relevant statutory documents, of the scheme, must be available, on request, to any Participant in an official language in which that person is familiar;
- 2.5.4 the scheme fiduciaries must present the financial reports of the scheme to Participants yearly at an annual general meeting of the scheme; and
- 2.5.5 all accumulated Economic Interest of the scheme is payable to the Participants at the earlier of a date or event specified in the scheme constitution or on the termination or winding-up of the scheme.

# 3. ADDITIONAL CRITERIA APPLICABLE TO EMPLOYEE SHARE OWNERSHIP PROGRAMMES

- 3.1.1 for a Measured Entity to obtain the maximum points on its Ownership scorecard, the following additional requirements must be met by an Employee Share Ownership Programme:
- 3.1.2 a track-record of operating as a Broad-Based Ownership
  Scheme or Employee Share Ownership Scheme, or
  in the absence of such a track-record demonstrable
  evidence of full operational capacity to operate as an
  Employee Share Ownership Programme;
- 3.2 operational capacity must be evidenced by suitably qualified and experienced staff in sufficient number, experienced professional advisors, operating premises and all other necessary requirements for operating a business.

## ANNEXE 100 (D)

### 4. RULES FOR TRUSTS

- 4.1 The qualification criteria for the recognition of Trusts are as follows:
- 4.1.1 the trust deed must define the beneficiaries and the proportion of their entitlement to receive distributions;
- 4.1.2 a written record of the names of the beneficiaries or the use of a defined class of natural person satisfies the requirement for identification;
- 4.1.3 a written record of fixed percentages of entitlement or the use of a formula for calculating entitlement satisfies the need for defining proportion of benefit;
- 4.1.4 the trustees must have no discretion on the abovementioned terms; and
- 4.1.5 on winding-up or termination of the trust, all accumulated Economic Interest must be transferred to the beneficiaries or to an entity representing the interest of the participants or class of beneficiaries.

### 5. RULES FOR FAMILY TRUSTS

- 5.1 The qualification criteria for the recognition of Family Trusts are as follows:
- 5.1.1 the trust deed must define the beneficiaries and the proportion of their entitlement to receive distributions;
- 5.1.2 a written record of the names of the beneficiaries or the use of a defined class of natural persons satisfies the requirement of defining beneficiaries;

- 5.1.3 a use of a formula for calculating entitlement satisfies the need for defining proportion of benefit;
- 5.1.4 only the trustees must have discretion on the abovementioned terms; and
- 5.1.5 on winding-up or termination of the trust, all accumulated Economic Interest must be transferred to the beneficiaries or to an entity representing the interest of the participants or class of beneficiaries.

### 6. ADDITIONAL CRITERIA APPLICABLE TO TRUSTS

- 6.1 for a Measured Entity to obtain the maximum points on its Ownership scorecard from shareholding by a Trust, the Measured Entity must be in possession of a certificate issued by a competent person to the effect:
- 6.1.1 that the Trust was created for a legitimate commercial reason which must be fully disclosed; and
- 6.1.2 that the terms of the Trust do not directly or indirectly seek to circumvent the provisions of the Codes and the Act.

### **ANNEXE 100 (E)**

#### 1. MEASUREMENT OF VOTING RIGHTS

1.1 The calculation of the Ownership indicators provided for in paragraphs 2.1.1 and 2.1.2 of the Ownership scorecard is as follows:

$$A = \frac{B}{C} \times D$$

### Where

**A** is the score achieved for the Entity for the measured Ownership indicator

**B** is the percentage that Exercisable Voting Rights in the hands of the category of Participants who are Black people in that Entity holds to all Voting Rights held by all Participants of that Entity

**C** is the percentage compliance Target for Exercisable Voting Rights for the applicable measured Ownership indicator in paragraph 2.1 of the Ownership scorecard.

**D** is the Weighting points allocated to the applicable measured Ownership indicator in paragraph 2.1 of the Ownership scorecard.

1.2 If an Entity gains a score in the Formula above that is more than the Weighting points in paragraph 2.1, that Entity will only receive the Weighting points.

### 2. MEASUREMENT OF ECONOMIC INTEREST

2.1 The calculation of the Ownership indicators provided for in paragraphs 2.2.1, 2.2.2, 2.2.3, and 2.2.4 of the Ownership scorecard is as follows:

$$A = \frac{B}{C} \times D$$

#### Where

**A** is the recognisable percentage of Black Participant claim to Fconomic

### Interest in the Entity

**B** is the percentage that Economic Interest to which Participants who fall within the category of Black people in that Entity holds to all Economic Interest to which all Participants of that Entity

**C** is the percentage compliance Target for Economic Interest for the applicable measured Ownership indicator in paragraph 2.2 of the Ownership scorecard.

**D** is the Weighting points allocated to the applicable measured Ownership indicator in paragraph 2.2 of the Ownership scorecard.

2.2 If an Entity gains a score in the Formula above that is more than the Weighting points in paragraph 2.2, that Entity will only receive the Weighting points.

### 3. CALCULATION OF DEEMED VALUE

3.1 In calculating the "Deemed Value" referred to in Formula 4 below, the following formula applies:

$$A = \frac{B - C}{D}$$

#### Where

A is the Deemed Value

 ${m B}$  for the purposes of Formula 4 below is the value of the Equity Instruments relevant to the calculation, determined on the date of measurement

**B** for the purposes of Formula 5 below is the value of the Equity Instruments relevant to the calculation, determined on the date of sale or loss

**C** for the purposes of Formula 4 below is the carrying value of any acquisition debts of the relevant Black participants on the date of measurement

**C** for the purposes of Formula 5 is the carrying value of any acquisition debts of the relevant Black participants on the date of sale or loss

**D** for the purposes of Formula 4 below is the value of the Measured Entity on the date of measurement

**D** for the purposes of Formula 5 below the value of the Black participants in the Measured Entity on the date of sale or loss

**D** for the purposes of the exclusion principle is the value of the measurable portion of the Measured Entity on the date of measurement

### 4. NET VALUE

4.1 The "Net Value" points in paragraph 2.3.1 is the lower result of Formula A and Formula B below:

#### Formula A

$$A = B\left(\frac{1}{25\% \times C}\right) \times 8$$

#### Where

**A** is the score under paragraph 2.3.1 of the Ownership scorecard

B is the Deemed Value for all Black Participants in the Measured Entity determined using Formula 3 above

**C** is the Time-Based Graduation Factor of the Economic Interest compliance target outlined below:

- 10% for the first year after the current equity interest date.
- 20% for the second year after the current equity interest date.
- 40% from the first day of the third year after the current equity interest date to the last day of the fourth year after the current equity interest date.
- 60% from the first day of the fifth year after the current equity interest date to the last day of the sixth year after the current equity interest date.
- 80% from the first day of the seventh year after the current equity interest date to the last day of the eighth year after the current equity interest date.
- 100% from the first day of the ninth year after the current equity interest date to the last day of the tenth year after the current equity interest date.

### Formula B

$$A = \frac{B}{C} \times \mathbf{8}$$

#### Where

A is the score under paragraph 2.3.1 of the Ownership scorecard.

**B** is the percentage Economic Interest in the Measured Entity of Black Participants

*C* is the target for the Ownership indicator in paragraph 2.3.1 of the Ownership scorecard.

- 4.2 If an Entity gains a score in the Formula above that is more than the Weighting points in paragraph 2.3.1, that Entity will only receive the Weighting points.
- 5. CALCULATION OF THE RECOGNITION OF OWNERSHIP
  AFTER THE SALE OR LOSS OF SHARES BY BLACK
  PARTICIPANTS:

The calculations in paragraphs 3.8.1 and 3.8.4 use the following formula:

$$A = B \times C \times D$$

### Where

**A** is the percentage of rights of Ownership that survive the sale or loss of an Equity Instrument by a Black Participant in paragraph 3.8 of the statement

**B** is the percentage of rights of Ownership for each of indicators in the Ownership scorecard that were attributable to the Black Participant immediately before his or her sale or loss of shares

**C** is the Net Value percentage provided for in paragraph 3 above undertaken for the Equity Instruments sold or lost by the Black Participant on the date of the sale or loss. The value of the Entity is measurable as at the date of sale or loss of shares

**D** is the most recently determined B-BBEE R cognition Level of the Measured Entity (which must be less than 1-year old) based on its applicable Scorecard result for all Elements other than Ownership determined using statement 000

# AMENDED CODE SERIES 200: MEASUREMENT OF THE MANAGEMENT CONTROL ELEMENT OF BROAD-BASED BLACK ECONOMIC EMPOWERMENT

# STATEMENT 200: THE GENERAL PRINCIPLES FOR MEASURING MANAGEMENT CONTROL

Issued under section 9 of the Broad-Based
Black Economic Empowerment Act of 2003

### Arrangement of this statement

Para	Subject	Page
1.	Objectives of this statement	87
2.	Management Control Scorecard	87
3.	Key Measurement Principles	90
4.	Measurement of the Management Control co	riteria . 91
5	Δημένε 200 (Δ)	92

### 1 OBJECTIVES OF THIS STATEMENT

- 1.1 Specify the scorecard for measuring Management Control contributions to B-BBEE;
- 1.2 Define the key measurement principles for measuring the Management Control contributions to B-BBEE; and
- 1.3 Define the formula for calculating the score for Management Control.

### 2 MANAGEMENT CONTROL SCORECARD

The following table represents the criteria used for deriving a score for Management Control under this statement:

Meas	urement Category and Criteria	Weighting points	Compliance targets
2.1	Board participation:		
2.1.1	Exercisable voting rights of black board members as a percentage of all board members	2	50%
2.1.2	Exercisable voting rights of black female board members as a percentage of all board members	1	25%
2.1.3	Black Executive directors as a percentage of all executive directors	2	50%

Meas	surement Category and Criteria	Weighting points	Compliance targets
2.1.4	Black female Executive Directors as a percentage of all executive directors	as a percentage of all	
2.2	Other Executive Management:		
2.2.1	Black Executive Management as a percentage of all executive directors	2	60%
2.2.2	Black female Executive Management as a persentage of all executive directors	1	30%
2.3	Senior Management		
2.3.1	Black employees in Senior Management as a percentage of all senior management	2	60%
2.3.2 Black female employees in Senior Management as a percentage of all senior management		1	30%
2.4	Middle Management		
2.4.1	Black employees in Middle Management as a percentage of all middle management	2	75%

Meas	urement Category and Criteria	Weighting points	Compliance targets	
2.4.2	Black female employees in Middle Management as a percentage of all middle management	1	38%	
2.5	Junior Management			
2.5.1	Black employees in Junior Management as a percentage of all junior management	1	88%	
2.5.2	Black female employees in Junior Management as a percentage of all junior management	1	44%	
2.6	Employees with disabilities			
2.6.1	Black employees with disabilities as a percentage of all employees	2	2%	

2.1 The compliance targets for 2.3, 2.4 and 2.5 of the Management Control scorecard are based on the overall demographic representation of black people as defined in the Regulations of Employment Equity Act and Commission on Employment Equity Report, as amended from time to time.

2.2 In determining a Measured Entity's score, the targets should be further broken down into specific criteria according to the different race sub groups within the definition of black in accordance with the Employment Equity Act on an equitable representation and weighted accordingly.

### 3 KEY MEASUREMENT PRINCIPLES

- 3.1 A Measured Entity receives points by meeting the targets for participation of black people and black women at Board, Executive Management, Senior Management, Middle Management, Junior Management Level, and black employees with disabilities.
- 3.2 A Measured Entity must use the current payroll data in calculating its score under the Management Control scorecard.
- 3.3 If a Measured Entity does not distinguish between Other Executive Management and Senior Management, then Executive Management is measurable as a single indicator with a Weighting of 6 points under paragraphs 2.2.1 and 2.2.2 split as 4 and 2 points respectively.

### 3.4 GENERAL PRINCIPLES

- 3.4.1 Executive Management positions include the following:
  Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Chief
  Financial Officer and other Executive Managers that
  serve on the Board of Directors.
- 3.4.2 Other Executive Management positions include all executive management that do not serve on the board, such as human resource executive, transformation executive and other people holding similar positions.

# 4. MEASUREMENT OF THE MANAGEMENT CONTROL CRITERIA

The criteria in the Management Control scorecard is measured in terms of the formula "A, B, C" set out in Annexe 200(A).

# 4.1 MEASUREMENT OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT, MIDDLE MANAGEMENT, AND JUNIOR MANAGEMENT.

The calculation of the Management Control indicators provided for in paragraphs, 2.3.1, 2.3.2, 2.4.1, 2.4.2, 2.5.1 and 2.5.2 is as follows:

$$\frac{\left(\frac{AM}{C} + \frac{CM}{C} + \frac{IM}{C} + \frac{AF}{C} + \frac{CF}{C} + \frac{IF}{C}\right)}{6}$$

### For each indicator where:

**A** is the percentage of Black employees for each occupational level as measured in the Management Control Scorecard using the annual EAP targets as published in the Regulations of Employment Equity Act and Commission on Employment Equity Report, as amended from time to time.

**AM** is the percentage of employees in the measurement category that are African Males.

**CM** is the percentage of employees in the measurement category that are Coloured Males.

**IM** is the percentage of employees in the measurement category that are Indian Males.

**AF** is the percentage of employees in the measurement category that are African Females.

**CF** is the percentage of employees in the measurement category that are Coloured Females.

*IF* is the percentage of employees in the measurement category that are Indian Females.

**C** is the compliance target as per the Regulations of Employment Equity Act and Commission on Employment Equity Report for that measurement sub-category.

# 5 MEASUREMENT OF MANAGEMENT CONTROL INDICATORS ANNEXE 200A

The management control criteria provided for in paragraphs 2.1, 2.2, is calculated as follows:

$$A = \underline{B} \times D$$

### Where

**A** is the score achieved in respect of a Measured Entity subject to measurement for the management control criteria specified in paragraph 2.1, 2.2.

**B** is the of Voting Rights in the hands of black members of the Board as percentage of Voting Rights of all members of the Board in the Measured Entity.

Or

**B** is the percentage of all employees in the executive and other executive management category that are black people of that Measured Entity.

Or

**B** is the percentage of black employees as calculated in Formula A

*C* is the percentage compliance target in respect of the applicable management control criteria being measured as specified in paragraph 2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 2.4, and 2.5.

**D** means the weighting points allocated to the applicable management control criteria being measured as specified in paragraph 2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 2.4, and 2.5.

### C: MEASUREMENT OF EMPLOYEES WITH DISABILITIES

The measurement of the criteria under paragraph 2.6 of the Management Control scorecard is as follows:

$$A = \underline{B} \times D$$

#### Where

A is the score for the given criteria as referred to in paragraph 2.6.1 of the scorecard under statement 200.

**B** is the total number of black employees with disability as a percentage of all employees.

**C** is the target for the applicable criteria as referred to in the scorecard under statement 200.

**D** is the Weighting for the applicable criteria as referred in the scorecard under statement 200.

# AMENDED CODE SERIES 300: MEASUREMENT OF THE SKILLS DEVELOPMENT ELEMENT OF BROAD-BASED BLACK ECONOMIC EMPOWERMENT

# STATEMENT 300: THE GENERAL PRINCIPLES FOR MEASURING SKILLS DEVELOPMENT

Issued under section 9 of the Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act of 2003

## Arrangement of this statement

Para	Subject	Page
1.	Objectives of this statement	95
2.	The Skills Development Scorecard	95
3.	Key Measurement Principles	97
4.	Sub-minimum and Discounting Principles	98
5.	General Principles	98
6.	Legitimate Recognisable Training Expenses	100
7.	Measurement of Skills Development Indicators	100
8.	Annexe 300 (A)	101
Q	Anneye 300 (R)	10/

### 1. OBJECTIVES OF THIS STATEMENT

- 1.1 Specify the scorecard for measuring the Skills Development Element of 8-BBEE;
- 1.2 Define the key measurement principles associated with the Skills Development Element; and
- 1.3 Indicate the formula for measuring the Skills Development Element.

### 2. THE SKILLS DEVELOPMENT ELEMENT SCORECARD

2.1 The following table represents the criteria used for deriving a score for Skills Development under this statement:

Category		Skills Development Element	Weighting points	Compliance Target
2.1.1	spe	ls Development Expenditur cified in the Learning Prog ople as a percentage of the	ramme Matr	ix for black
2.1.1.1	Exp Pro the Ma a p	Is Development senditure on Learning grammes specified in Learning Programme trix for black people as sercentage of Leviable ount.	8	6%

Category		Skills Development Element	Weighting points	Compliance Target	
2.1.1.2	Exp Pro Lea for disa	Is Development enditure on Learning grammes specified in the rning Programme Matrix black employeeswith abilities as a percentage eviable Amount.	4	0.3%	
2.1.2	Lea	rnerships, Apprenticeships	, and Interns	hips	
2.1.2.1 Number of black people participating in Learnerships, Apprenticeships and internships as a percentage of total employees			4	2.5%	
2.1.2.2 Number of unemployed black people participating in training specified in the learning programme matrix as a percentage of number of employees			4	2.5%	
Bonus	Bonus points:				
2.1.3 Number of black people absorbed by the Measured and Industry Entity at the end of the Learnerships programme		5	100%		

- 2.2 The compliance targets for 2.1.1.1, 2.1.1.2, 2.1.2.1, 2.1.2.2 and 2.1.3 of the Skills Development scorecard are based on the overall demographic representation of black people as defined in the Regulations of the Employment Equity Act and Commission of Employment Equity Report as amended from time to time.
- 2.3 In determining a Measured Entity's score, the targets should be further broken down into specific criteria according to the different race sub-groups within the definition of black in accordance with the Regulations of Employment Equity Act and Commission of Employment Equity Report requirements on equitable representation and weighted accordingly.

#### 3. KEY MEASUREMENT PRINCIPLES

- 3.1 The following criteria must be fulfilled in order for the Measured Entity to receive points on the Skills Development Element scorecard:
- 3.1.1 Workplace Skills Plan, an Annual Training Report and Pivotal Report which are SETA approved; and
- 3.1.2 Implementation of Priority Skills programme generally, and more specifically for black people.
- 3.2 The 6 % compliance target under paragraph 2.1.1.1 includes external training expenditure for unemployed black people.
- 3.3 A trainee tracking tool has to be developed in order for the Measured Entity to score under paragraph 2.1.3.

3.4 If less than 100% of the trainees are absorbed under paragraph 2.1.3, the percentage achieved or absorbed will be recognised.

### 4. SUB-MINIMUM AND DISCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

- 4.1 A Measured Entity must achieve a minimum of 40% of the targets set out in the Skills Development Element
- 4.2 Non-compliance to the threshold targets will result in the overall achieved B-BBEE status level being discounted in accordance with paragraph 3.4 of Statement 000.

### GENERAL PRINCIPLES

- 5.1.1 Skills Development must contribute to the achievement of the country's economic growth and social development goals that will enrich the creation of decent work and sustainable livelihoods.
- 5.1.2 Promote the development of an industrial skills base in critical sectors of production and value-added manufacturing, which are largely labour intensive industries.
- 5.1.3 Support 'Professional, Vocational, Technical and Academic Learning programmes, achieved by means of professional placements, work integrated learning, apprenticeships, learnerships and internships, that meet the critical needs for economic growth and development.
- 5.1.4 Strengthen the skills and human resource base by encouraging the support of skills development initiatives with an emphasis on skills development and career pathing for all working people in order to support employment creation.

- 5.2 Skills Development Expenditure includes any legitimate expenses incurred for any Learning Programme offered by a Measured Entity to its employees evidenced by an invoice or appropriate internal accounting record.
- 5.3 Skills Development Expenditure arising from Informal and workplace Learning Programmes or from Category F and G Learning Programmes under the Learning Programmes Matrix cannot represent more than 15% of the total value of Skills Development Expenditure.
- 5.4 Legitimate training costs such as accommodation, catering and travelling (non-exhaustive) cannot exceed more than 15% of the total value of Skills Development Expenditure
- 5.5 Salaries or wages paid to an employee participating as a learner in any Learning Programme only constitute Skills Development Expenditure if the Learning Programme is a Learnership, Internship and Apprenticeship (Category B, C and D) of the Learning Programme Matrix.
- 5.6 Expenses on scholarships and bursaries for employees do not constitute Skills Development Expenditure if the Measured Entity can recover any portion of those expenses from the employee or if the grant of the scholarship or bursary is conditional. Despite the afore going, if the right of recovery or the condition involves either of the following obligations of the employee, the expenses are recognisable:
- 5.6.1 the obligation of successful completion in their studies within the time period allocated; or

- 5.6.2 the obligation of continued employment by the Measured Entity for a period following successful completion of their studies is not more than the period of their studies.
- 5.7 Mandatory sectoral training does not qualify as skills development contribution i.e. health and safety in the construction sector (non-exhaustive list).
- 5.8 Training outside the country in line with the Learning Programme Matrix under Annexure 300 (A) is measurable if it meets the South African Qualification Authority requirement for recognition.

### 6. LEGITIMATE RECOGNISABLE TRAINING EXPENSES

- 6.1.1 costs of training materials;
- 6.1.2 costs of trainers;
- 6.1.3 costs of training facilities including costs of catering;
- 6.1.4 scholarships and bursaries;
- 6.1.5 course fees;
- 6.1.6 accommodation and travel; and
- 6.1.7 Administration costs such as the organisation of training including, where appropriate, the cost to the Measured Entity of employing a Skills Development Facilitator or a training manager.

# 7. MEASUREMENT OF SKILLS DEVELOPMENT INDICATORS

The formula that explains the method of measurement of the criteria in the skills development scorecard is set out in formula "A" in Annexe 300(8).

# 8. ANNEXE 300 (A)

# **Learning Programme Matrix**

Cat	Programme	Narrative Description	Delivery Mode	Learning Site	Learning Achievement
A	Bursaries	Institution- based theoretical instruction alone- formally assessed by the institution	Institutional instruction	Institutions such as universities and colleges, schools, ABET providers	Recognised theoretical knowledge resulting in the achievement of a degree, diploma or certificate issued by an accredited or registered formal institution of learning
В	Internships	Institution- based theoretical instruction as well as some practical learning with an employer or in a simulated work environment- formally assessed through the institution			Theoretical knowledge and workplace experience with set requirements resulting in the achievement of a degree, diploma or certificate issued by an accredited or registered formal institution of learning

Cat	Programme	Narrative Description	Delivery Mode	Learning Site	Learning Achievement
С	Learnerships	Recognised or registered structured experiential learning in the workplace that is required after the achievement of a qualification- formally assessed by a statutory occupational or professional body	Structured learning in the workplace with mentoring or coaching	Workplace	Occupational or professional knowledge and experience formally recognised through registration or licensing
D	Learnerships or Apprenticeships	Occupationally-directed instructional and work-based learning programme that requires a formal contract -formally assessed by an accredited body	Institutional instruction together with structured, supervised experiential learning in the workplace	Institution and workplace	Theoretical knowledge and workplace learning, resulting in the achievement of a South African Qualifications Authority registered qualification, a certificate or other similar occupational or professional qualification issued by an accredited or registered formal institution of learning

Cat	Programme	Narrative	Delivery	Learning	Learning
		Description	Mode	Site	Achievement
E	Work-	Occupationally-	Structured,	Workplace,	Credits awarded
	integrated	directed	supervised	institutional	for registered
	learning	instructional	experiential	as well	unit standards,
		and work-	learning	as ABET	continued
		based learning	in the	providers	professional
		programme	workplace		development,
		that does not	which may		improved
		require a formal	include		performance
		contract	some		or skills (e.g.
		-formally	institutional		evidence of
		assessed by	instruction		outputs based
		an accredited			on Performance
		body			Development
					Programme)
F	Informal	Occupationally-	Structured	Institutions,	Continuing
	training	directed	information	conferences	professional
		informal	sharing	and	development,
		instructional	or direct	meetings	attendance
		programmes	instruction		certificates and
			involving		credits against
			workshops,		registered unit
			seminars and		standards (in
			conferences		some instances)
			and short		
			courses		
G	Informal	Work-based	Informal	Workplace	Increased
	training	informal	training		understand of
		programmes			job or work
					context or
					improved
					performance or
					skills

### 9. ANNEXE 300 (B)

# A: MEASUREMENT OF SKILLS DEVELOPMENT INDICATORS

When determining the target for each racial group within the definition of black the following table should be utilised in C under Formula 1 below:

### Formula 1

The calculation of the Skills Development indicators provided for in paragraph 2.1.1.1 and 2.1.2 as follows:

**1.1** 
$$A = \begin{bmatrix} \frac{AM}{C} + \frac{CM}{C} + \frac{IM}{C} + \frac{AF}{C} + \frac{CF}{C} + \frac{IF}{C} \\ 6 \end{bmatrix}$$

- 1.2 For each indicator
- 1.3 Where
- 1.4 A is the percentage spend on Black employees (indicator 2.1.1.1) or percentage of Black people (indicator 2.1.2) for each indicator as measured in the Skills Development Scorecard using the annual EAP targets as published in the Regulations of Employment Equity Act and Commission of Employment Equity Report.
- 1.5 AM is the percentage of spend (indicator 2.1.1.1) or people (indicator 2.1.2) in the measurement category that are African Males

- 1.6 CM is the percentage of spend (indicator 2.1.1.1) or people (indicator 2.1.2) in the measurement category that are Coloured Males
- 1.7 IM is the percentage of spend (indicator 2.1.1.1) or people (indicator 2.1.2) in the measurement category that are Indian Males
- 1.8 AF is the percentage of spend (indicator 2.1.1.1) or people (indicator 2.1.2) in the measurement category that are African Females
- 1.9 CF is the percentage of spend (indicator 2.1.1.1) or people (indicator 2.1.2) in the measurement category that are Coloured Females
- 1.10 IF is the percentage of spend (indicator 2.1.1.1) or people (indicator 2.1.2) in the measurement category that are Indian Females
- 1.11 C is the compliance target as per the Regulations of Employment Equity Act for that measurement subcategory

# B: MEASUREMENT OF SKILLS DEVELOPMENT INDICATORS

### Formula 2

The formulas explain the method of measurement of the criteria under paragraph 2.1.1 and 2.1.2 of the Skills Development Element scorecard:

$$A = \underline{B} \times D$$

#### Where

- A is the score for the given criteria as referred to in paragraph 2.1.1 and 2.1.2 of the scorecard understatement 300
- **B** is the percentage of spend in the measurement category that are black people

Or

**B** is the percentage of people in the measurement category that are black people

Or

- B is the percentage of spend in the measurement category that are black disabled people (indicator 2.1.1.2)
- C is the target for the applicable criteria as referred to in the scorecard understatement 300
- D is the Weighting for the applicable criteria as referred in the scorecard understatement 300

# AMENDED CODE SERIES 400: MEASUREMENT OF THE ENTERPRISE AND SUPPLIER DEVELOPMENT ELEMENT OF BROAD-BASED BLACK ECONOMIC EMPOWERMENT

### STATEMENT 400: THE GENERAL PRINCIPLES FOR MEASURING ENTERPRISE AND SUPPLIER DEVELOPMENT

Issued under section 9 of the Broad-Based
Black Economic Empowerment Act of 2003

# Arrangement of this statement

Para	Subject	Page
1.	Objectives of this statement	
2.	Enterprise and Development Scorecard	
3.	Key Measurement Principles	
4.	General Principles	
5.	Total Measured Procurement Spend	
6.	Exclusion from Total Measured Procurement Spend	
7.	Measurement of 8-BBEE Procurement Spend	
8.	Calculation of Enterprise and Supplier Development contributions	
9.	Enterprise Development and Supplier Development Contributions	
10.	Monetary and Non-Monetary Contributions	
11.	Measurement of Enterprise Development and Supplier Development Contributions	
12.	Annexe 400	

#### 1. OBJECTIVES OF THIS STATEMENT

- 1.1 Specify the scorecard for measuring Enterprise and Supplier Development;
- 1.2 Specify the key measurement principles applicable to calculating Preferential Procurement contributions; Qualifying Enterprise Development and Supplier Development Contributions;
- 1.3 Define the principles applicable when calculating B-BBEE Procurement Spend and Enterprise Development and Supplier Development Spend; and
- 1.4 Indicate the formula for calculating the individual criteria specified in the Enterprise and Supplier Development scorecard.

# 2. ENTERPRISE AND SUPPLIER DEVELOPMENT SCORECARD

The following table represents the criteria for deriving a score for Enterprise and Supplier Development under this statement.

Criteria		Weighting points	Compliance targets		
2.1	2.1 PREFERENTIAL PROCUREMENT				
2.1.1	B-BBEE Procurement Spend from all Empowering Suppliers based on the B-BBEE Procurement Recognition Levels as a percentage of Total Measured Procurement Spend	5	80%		

Criteria	Criteria		Compliance targets
Spend fron Suppliers t Small Enter on the app Procureme Levels as a	ocurement In all Empowering In all Empowering In at are Qualifying In prises based Ilicable B-BBEE Int Recognition In percentage of Total In percentage of Total In all Empowers In all Empowe	3	15%
Micro-Ente on the app Procureme Levels as a	curement n all Exempted reprises based clicable B-BBEE ent Recognition percentage of ured Procurement	4	15%
Suppliers t 51% black on the app Procureme Levels as a	curement n Empowering nat are at least owned based plicable B-BBEE nt Recognition percentage of sured Procurement	9	40%

Crite	Criteria		Compliance targets
2.1.5	B-BBEE Procurement Spend from Empowering Suppliers that are at least 30% black women owned based on the applicable B-BBEE Procurement Recognition Levels as a percentage of Total Measured Procurement Spend	4	12%
2.2	Bonus points		
2.2.1	B-BBEE Procurement Spend from Designated Group Suppliers that are at least 51% Black owned.	2	2%
2.3	SUPPLIER DEVELOPMENT		
2.3.1	Annual value of all Supplier Development Contributions made by the Measured Entity as a percentage of the target.	10	2% of NPAT
2.4	ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT		
2.4.1	Annual value of Enterprise Development Contributions and Sector Specific Programmes made by the Measured Entity as a percentage of the target.	5	1% of NPAT

Crite	ria	Weighting points	Compliance targets
2.5	<b>Bonus Points</b>		
2.5.1	Bonus point for the graduation of one or more EnterpriseDevelopment beneficiaries to graduate to the Supplier Development level.	1	
2.5.2	Bonus point for creating one or more jobs directly as a result of Supplier Development and Enterprise Development initiatives by the Measured Entity.	1	

### 3. KEY MEASUREMENT PRINCIPLES

- 3.1 The Enterprise and Supplier Development consist of,
- 3.1.1 Preferential Procurement; and
- 3.1.2 Enterprise Development and Supplier Development.
- 3.1.3 Enterprise Development and Supplier Development Contributions will be recognised as a percentage of annual Net Profit After Tax (NPAT).

### 3.2 SUB-MINIMUM AND DISCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

3.2.1 A Measured Entity must achieve a minimum of 40% of each of the targets set out on 2.1, 2.2 and 2.3 excluding bonus points of the Enterprise and Supplier Development Scorecard.

- 3.2.2 Non-compliance to the threshold targets will result in the overall achieved B-BBEE status level being discounted in accordance with paragraph 3.4 in statement 000.
- 3.3 An Empowering Supplier within a context of B-BBEE is a B-BBEE compliant entity, which is a good citizen South African entity, comply with all regulatory requirements of the country and should meet at least three if it is a large enterprise or one if it is a QSE of the following criteria:
- (a) At least 25% of cost of sales excluding labour cost and depreciation must be procured from local producers or local supplier in SA, for service industry labour cost are included but capped to 15%.
- (b) Job creation 50% of jobs created are for Black people provided that the number of Black employees since the immediate prior verified B-BBEE Measurement is maintained.
- (c) At least 25% transformation of raw material/ beneficiation which includes local manufacturing, production and/or assembly, and/or packaging.
- (d) Skills transfer at least spend 12 days per annum of productivity deployed in assisting Black EMEs and QSEs beneficiaries to increase their operation or financial capacity.
- 3.3.1 Exempted Micro Enterprises and Start-Ups are automatically recognised as Empowering Suppliers.
- 3.4 The Weighting points in the Enterprise and Supplier Development scorecard represent the maximum number of points possible for each of the criteria.

- 3.5 If a Measured Entity procures goods and services from a supplier that is:
- 3.5.1 A recipient of supplier development contributions from a Measured Entity under Code series 400 has a minimum 3 year contract with the Measured Entity, the recognisable B-BBEE Procurement Spend that can be attributed to that Supplier is multiplied by a factor of 1.2;
- 3.5.2 A black owned QSE or EME which is not a supplier development beneficiary but that has a minimum 3 year contract with the Measured Entity, the recognisable B-BBEE Procurement Spend that can be attributed to that Supplier is multiplied by a factor of 1.2;
- 3.5.3 A first-time supplier to the Measured Entity, the recognisable B-BBEE Procurement Spend that can be attributed to that Supplier is multiplied by a factor of 1.2.
- 3.6. Procurement of goods and services and any other activities that fall under 2.1 will not qualify for scoring under 2.2 and 2.3 and vice versa.
- 3.7 Beneficiaries of Supplier Development and Enterprise Development are EMEs or QSEs which are at least 51% black owned or at least 51% black women owned.

### 4. GENERAL PRINCIPLES

4.1 To strengthen local procurement in order to help build South Africa's industrial base in critical sectors of production and value adding manufacturing, which are largely labour-intensive industries.

- 4.2 To increase local procurement through capacity building achieved by incentivising appropriate local supplier development programmes by businesses supplying imported goods and services.
- 4.3 The imports provisions do not apply to the designated sectors and products for local production, as and when published.
- 4.4 To actively support procurement from black owned QSEs and EMEs by identifying opportunities to increase procurement from local suppliers in order to support employment creation.
- 4.5 To support procurement from black owned and black women owned businesses in order to increase the participation of these businesses in the main stream economy.
- 4.6 To promote the use of black owned professional service providers and entrepreneurs as suppliers.
- 4.7 Measured Entities receive recognition for any Enterprise Development and Supplier Development Contributions that are quantifiable as a monetary value using a Standard Valuation Method.
- 4.8 Measured Entities are encouraged to align their Enterprise Development and Supplier Development initiatives with the designated sectors of government's localisation and value adding programmes.
- 4.9 Measured Entities are encouraged to align their enterprise development and supplier development initiatives with their supply chain requirements thereby linking Enterprise Development and Supplier Development with Preferential Procurement.

- 4.10 Qualifying Enterprise Development and Supplier Development Contributions of any Measured Entity are recognisable on an annual basis.
- 4.11 Contributions, programmes and/or initiatives that span over multiple years, the total contribution amount, must be divided by the number of years, and the average per year is then to be utilised for the annual contribution.
- 4.12 Measured Entities are encouraged to develop and implemented an Enterprise Development plan and Supplier Development plan for Qualifying Beneficiaries. The plan should include:
- 4.12.1 Clear objectives
- 4.12.2 Priority interventions
- 4.12.3 Key performance indicators; and
- 4.12.4 A concise implementation plan with clearly articulated milestones.
- 4.13 Measured Entities will not get recognition for the same activities undertaken under 2.2 and 2.3, they will only get recognition for one of the two i.e. 2.2 or 2.3
- 4.14 No portion of the value of any Qualifying Enterprise Development and Supplier Development Contribution that is payable to the beneficiary after the date of measurement can form part of any calculation under this statement.

### 5 TOTAL MEASURED PROCUREMENT SPEND

The following procurement is measurable within Total Measured Procurement Spend:

- 5.1 Cost of sales: all goods and services procured that comprise the cost of the sales of the Measured Entity,
- 5.2 Operational expenditure: all goods and services procured that comprise the operational expenditure of the Measured Entity;
- 5.3 Capital expenditure: all capital expenditure incurred by the Measured Entity;

### 5.4 Public sector procurement:

- 5.4.1 all goods and services procured from organs of state and public entities Despite this, procurement by a Measured Entity from a local government authority, which is a reseller of that service, is measurable at the B-BBEE Recognition Level of the primary Supplier of the service; and
- 5.4.2 in any event, any procurement of any goods or services from any organ of state or public entity that enjoys a statutory or regulated monopoly in the supply of such goods or services, is excluded;
- 5.5 Monopolistic procurement: all goods and services procured from suppliers that enjoy a monopolistic position;
- 5.6 Third-party procurement: all procurement for a thirdparty or a client, where the cost of that procurement is an expense recorded in the Measured Entity's annual financial statements;

- 5.7 Labour brokers and independent contractors: any procurement of the Measured Entity which is Outsourced Labour Expenditure;
- Pension and medical aid contributions: payments made to any post-retirement funding scheme or to a medical aid or similar medical insurer by a Measured Entity for its employees, excluding any portions of such payments which are a contribution to a capital investment of the employee. The scheme or insurer must issue a certificate dividing payments between the capital investment portion and the balance to establish the amount that is measurable within Total Measured Procurement Spend:
- 5.9 Trade commission's: any commission or similar payments payable by a Measured Entity to any other person pursuant to the business or trade of the Measured Entity;
- 5.10 Empowerment related expenditure: all goods and services procured in carrying out 8-BBEE. The Total Measured Procurement Spend does not include the actual contribution portion recognised under section 2.2 and 2.3 of this statement or Code series 500 but does include any expenditure incurred in facilitating those contributions;
- 5.11 Imports: all goods and services that are imported or procured from a non-South African source; and
- 5.12 Intra-group procurement: all goods and services procured from subsidiaries or holding companies of the Measured Entity (BEE credentials of the entity supplying goods and/or services must be confirmed by way of a valid BEE certificate).

### 6 EXCLUSIONS FROM TOTAL MEASURED PROCUREMENT SPEND

The following list provides permissible exclusions from Total Measured Procurement Spend recognisable in terms of paragraph 5:

- 6.1 Taxation: any amount payable to any person which represents a lawful tax or levy imposed by an organ of state authorised to impose such tax or levy, including rates imposed by a municipality or other local government;
- 6.2 Salaries, wages, remunerations, and emoluments: any amount payable to an employee as an element of their salary or wage and any emolument or similar payment paid to a director of a Measured Entity;
- 6.3 Pass-through third-party procurement: all procurement for a third-party or a client that is recorded as an expense in the third-party or client's annual financial statements but is not recorded as such in the Measured Entity's annual financial statements;

### 6.4 Empowerment related procurement:

- 6.4.1 Investments in or loans to an Associated Enterprise;
- 6.4.2 Investments, loans or donations qualifying for recognition under any statement under Code series 400 or 500;
- 6.5 Imports: the following imported goods and services:
- 6.5.1 imported capital goods or components for value-added production in South Africa provided that:

Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act 6.5.1.1 there is no existing local production of such capital goods or components; and 6.5.1.2 importing those capital goods or components promotes further value-added production within South Africa: 6.5.2 imported goods and services other than those listed in paragraph 6.5.1 if there is no local production of those goods or services including, but not limited to, imported goods or services that-6.5.2.1 carry a brand different to the locally produced goods or services: or 6.5.2.2 have different technical specifications to the locally produced goods or services. 6.5.3 The exclusion of imports listed under 6.5.2 are subject to them having developed and implemented an Enterprise Development and Supplier Development plan for imported goods and services. This plan should include: 6.5.3.1 Clear objectives 6.5.3.2 **Priority interventions** 6.5.3.3 Key performance indicators; and 6.5.3.4 A concise implementation plan with clearly articulated milestones

> The Department of Trade and Industry will from time to time consult with the industry and issue practice notes with regard to the provisions on import exclusion.

6.5.4

### 7. MEASUREMENT OF B-BBEE PROCUREMENT SPEND

- 7.1 B-BBEE Procurement Spend is the value of the procurement falling within paragraph 5 and not excluded by paragraph6. If a supplier falls within a category of supplier listed in paragraph 3.5, the value of procurement from that supplier is multiplied by the applicable factor listed in that paragraph.
- 7.2 B-BBEE Procurement Spend can be measured in terms of formula "A" in Annexe 400(A).
- 7.3 The B-BBEE Procurement Spend for a Measured Entity in respect of a supplier is calculated by multiplying the spend contemplated by paragraph 5 (and not excluded by paragraph 6) in respect of that supplier by the supplier's B-BBEE Recognition Level.
- 7.4 A Measured Entity's Total Procurement Spend is the total of all amounts calculated in terms of paragraph 7.3.

## 8 THE CALCULATION OF PREFERENTIAL PROCUREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS TO B-BBEE

- 8.1 A measured Entity receives a score for procurement in proportion to the extent that it meets the compliance target.
- 8.2 The Measured Entity's score for Preferential Procurement contributions to B-BBEE under the preferential procurement scorecard can be calculated in terms of formula "B" in Annexe 400(A).

9	ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT AND SUPPLIER DEVELOPMENT CONTRIBUTIONS
9.1	The following is a non-exhaustive list of Enterprise Development and Supplier Development Contributions:
9.1.1	investments in beneficiary entities;
9.1.2	loans made to beneficiary entities;
9.1.3	guarantees given or security provided on behalf of beneficiaries;
9.1.4	credit facilities made available to beneficiary entities;
9.1.5	grant Contributions to beneficiary entities;
9.1.6	direct costs incurred by a Measured Entity in assisting and hastening development of beneficiary entities;
9.1.7	overhead costs of a Measured Entity directly attributable to Enterprise Development and Supplier Development Contributions;
9.1.8	preferential credit terms granted by a Measured Entity to beneficiary entities;
9.1.9	preferential terms granted by a Measured Entity in respect of its supply of goods or services to beneficiary entities;
9.1.10	contributions made to settling service costs relating to the operational or financial capacity or efficiency levels of beneficiary entities;
9.1.11	discounts given to beneficiary entities in relation to the acquisition and maintenance costs associated with the grant to those beneficiary entities of franchise, licence,

agency, distribution or other similar business rights;

- 9.1.12 the creation or development of capacity and expertise for beneficiary entities needed to manufacture or produce goods or services previously not manufactured, produced or provided in the Republic of South Africa is provided for in Government's economic growth and local supplier development policies and initiatives;
- 9.1.13 facilitating access to credit for beneficiary entities without access to similar credit facilities through traditional means owing to a lack of credit history, high-risk or lack of collateral;
- 9.1.14 provision of training or mentoring by suitably qualified entities or individuals to beneficiary entities which will assist the beneficiary entities to increase their operational or financial capacity; and
- 9.1.15 the maintenance by the Measured Entity of an Enterprise Development and Supplier Development unit which focuses exclusively on support of beneficiary entities or candidate beneficiary entities.
- 9.1.16 new projects promoting beneficiation by the Measured Entity for the benefit of Enterprise Development and Supplier Development Beneficiaries.
- 9.1.17 provision of preferential credit facilities to a beneficiary entity by a Measured Entity may constitute an Enterprise Development and Supplier Development Contribution. Examples of such contributions include without limitation:
- 9.1.18 provision of finance to beneficiary entities at lower than commercial rates of interest;

- 9.1.19 relaxed security requirements or absence of security requirements for beneficiary entities unable to provide security for loans; and
- 9.1.20 settlement of accounts with beneficiary entities over a shorter period of time in relation to the Measured Entity's normal payment period, provided the shorter period is no longer than 15 days;
- 9.1.21 providing training or mentoring to beneficiary communities by a Measured Entity. (Such contributions are measurable by quantifying the cost of time (excluding travel or commuting time) spent by staff or management of the Measured Entity in carrying out such initiatives. A clear justification, commensurate with the seniority and expertise of the trainer or mentor, must support any claim for time costs incurred).
- 9.1.22 maintaining an Enterprise Development and Supplier Development unit by the Measured Entity. (Only that portion of salaries and wages attributable to time spent by the staff in, and the other expenses related to, promoting or implementing Enterprise Development and Supplier Development constitute contributions.)
- 9.1.23 Payments made by the Measured Entity to suitably qualified and experienced third parties to perform Enterprise Development and Supplier Development on the Measured Entity's behalf.

### 10 MONETARY AND NON-MONETARY CONTRIBUTIONS

10.1 Subject always to the definition of Qualifying Enterprise Development and Supplier Development Contributions, the following monetary/non-monetary contributions will, without limitation, be considered:

- 10.1.1 the provision of seed or development capital;
- 10.1.2 contributions made towards the settlement of the cost of services relating to the operational or financial capacity and/or efficiency levels of a Qualifying Enterprise Development and Supplier Development Beneficiary including, without limitation:
- 10.1.2.1 professional and consulting services;
- 10.1.2.2 licensing and/or registration fees;
- 10.1.2.3 industry specific levies and/or other such fees; and
- 10.1.2.4 IT services;
- 10.1.3 subject to paragraph 10.1, creation or development of capacity and expertise for Beneficiary Entities required to manufacture or produce goods and/or services previously not manufactured, produced or provided in the Republic of South Africa;
- 10.1.4 subject to paragraph 10.2, provision of preferential credit facilities;
- 10.1.5 subject to paragraph 10.1, facilitation of access to credit for Beneficiary Entities unable to access similar credit facilities through traditional means owing to a lack of credit history, high risk and/or lack of collateral;
- 10.1.6 subject to paragraph 10.3, provision of training and/or mentoring to Beneficiary Entities which will assist the Beneficiary Entities to increase their operational and/or financial capacity; and
- 10.1.7 subject to paragraph 10.4, the maintenance by the Measured Entity of an Enterprise Development and Supplier Development unit which focuses exclusively

on support of Beneficiary Entities or candidate Beneficiary Entities.

- 10.2 The creation and/or development of the capacity of Beneficiary Entities which will enable them to manufacture and produce goods and/or provide services previously not available in the Republic of South Africa, may constitute a Qualifying Enterprise Development and Supplier Development Contribution, and will be measured as the rand value of monetary contributions made as well as investments into, loans made to or guarantees given for a Beneficiary Entity.
- 10.3 Provision of preferential credit facilities to a Beneficiary
  Entity by a Measured Entity may constitute a Qualifying
  Enterprise Development and
  Supplier Development Contribution. Examples of such
  contributions include without limitation:
- 10.3.1 provision of finance to Beneficiary Entities at rates of interest below the applicable rate. Such contributions will be measured as the value of the differential between the actual interest rate provided to the Beneficiary Entity and the applicable rate;
- 10.3.2 relaxed security requirements or absence of security requirements for Beneficiary Entities unable to provide security for loans. Such contributions shall be measured as being 3% (three percent) of any positive differential between the initial capital value of the loan and the value of security taken; and
- 10.3.3 settlement of accounts with Beneficiary Entities over a shorter period of time in relation to the Measured

Entity's normal payment period, provided that the shorter period is no longer than 15 days. Preferential payment terms which extend beyond 15 days will not qualify as Qualifying

Enterprise Development and Supplier Development Contributions

- Provision of training and/or mentoring to a Beneficiary Entity by a Measured Entity may constitute a Qualifying Enterprise Development and Supplier Development Contribution. Such contributions will be measured by quantifying the cost of time spent by staff or management of the Measured Entity in carrying out such initiatives. Any travel or commuting time may not be included in this cost. Furthermore, a clear justification must be supplied with respect to the calculation of such time costs incurred, commensurate with the level of seniority and expertise of the trainer or mentor. Common forms of such contribution include without limitation:
- 10.4.1 Professional and consulting services;
- 10.4.2 IT services; and
- 10.4.3 any other services which help to increase the entity's financial and/or operational capacity and which have not also been accounted for under skills development.
- 10.5 The maintenance of an Enterprise Development and Supplier Development unit by the Measured Entity may constitute a Qualifying Enterprise Development and Supplier Development Contribution. Common examples of such contributions include without

limitation the salaries and wages of staff and other expenses involved in the operation of such Enterprise Development and Supplier Development unit. Notwithstanding the afore going, only that portion of salaries and wages which relate to time spent by the staff in and the other expenses related to the promotion and implementation of Enterprise Development and Supplier Development in respect of Beneficiary Entities or candidate Beneficiary Entities should be taken into consideration under Enterprise Development and Supplier Development contributions.

## 11 MEASUREMENT OF ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT AND SUPPLIER DEVELOPMENT CONTRIBUTIONS

- 11.1 A measured Entity receives a score for Enterprise Development and Supplier Development in proportion the extent that it meets the compliance target.
- 11.2 Qualifying Contributions are measurable using the formula "A" in Annexe 400(B)

### ANNEXE400 (A)

### A: B-BBEE PROCUREMENT SPEND:

$$A =$$
the sum of  $(B \times C)$ 

#### Where

**A** is the calculated total B-BBEE Procurement Spend for the Measured Entity. It is equal to the sum of the result of the product of 8 and C for each Supplier of the Measured Entity not excluded under the exclusion from total measured procurement spend;

**B** is the value of procurement falling within Total measured procurement spend and not excluded under the exclusion from total measured procurement spend from each Supplier of the Measured Entity;

**C** is the B-BBEE Procurement Recognition Level of each such Supplier of the Measured Entity.

## B: THE CALCULATION OF PREFERENTIAL PROCUREMENT CONTRIBUTIONS TO B-BBFF:

$$A = \underline{B} \times D$$

### Where

**A** is the calculated preferential procurement score for 2.1.1, 2.1.2, 2.1.3,2.1.4 and 2.1.5 in the scorecard understatement 400 for the Measured Entity;

**B** is the total B-BBEE Procurement Spend of the Measured Entity calculated under measurement of B-BBEE Procurement Spend as a percentage of Total Measured Procurement Spend of that Measured Entity;

**C** is the compliance target for each criteria specified in the scorecard understatement 400;

**D** is the Weighting points allocated to each criteria specified in the scorecard under statement 400.

### ANNEXE 400(B)

### Annexe 400B - Enterprise Development and Supplier Development Benefit Factor Matrix

Qualifying Contribution type	Contribution Amount	Benefit Factor
Grant and Related Contril	butions	
Grant Contribution	Full Grant Amount	100%
Direct Cost incurred in supporting Enterprise Development and Supplier Development	Verifiable Cost (including both monetary and non-monetary)	100%
Discounts in addition to normal business practices supporting Enterprise Development and Supplier Development	Discount Amount (in addition to normal business discount)	100%

Qualifying Contribution type	Contribution Amount	Benefit Factor	
Overhead Costs incurred in supporting Enterprise Development and Supplier Development (including people appointed in Enterprise Development and Supplier Development)	Verifiable Costs (including both monetary and non-monetary)	70%	
Loans and Related Contributions			
Interest-Free Loan with no security requirements supporting Enterprise Development and Supplier Development	Outstanding Loan Amount	70%	
Standard Loan to Enterprise Development and Supplier Development Beneficiaries	Outstanding Loan Amount	50%	
Guarantees provided on behalf of a Beneficiary entity	Guarantee Amount	3%	

Qualifying Contribution type	Contribution Amount	Benefit Factor	
Lower Interest Rate	Outstanding loan amount	Prime Rate — Actual Rate	
Equity Investments and R	elated Contribution	S	
Minority Investment in Enterprise Development and Supplier Development Beneficiaries	Investment Amount	70%	
Enterprise Development and Supplier Development Investment with lower dividend to financier	Investment Amount	Dividend Rate of Ordinary Shareholders Actual Dividend Rate of Contributor	
Contributions made in the form of human resource capacity			
Professional services rendered at no cost and supporting Enterprise Development and Supplier Development	Commercial hourly rate of professional	60%	

Qualifying Contribution type	Contribution Amount	Benefit Factor
Professional services rendered at a discount and supporting Enterprise Development and Supplier Development	Value of discount based on commercial hourly rate of professional	60%
Time of employees of Measured Entity productively deployed in assisting beneficiaries	Monthly salary divided by 160	60%
Other Contributions		
Shorter payment periods for 2.2 of this statement (Supplier Development)	Percentage of invoiced amount multiplied by 15% (being an approximation of the cost of short-term funding)	Percentage being 15 days less the number of days from invoice to payment. Maximum points that can be scored is 15% of 10 points

### **ANNEXE 400(8)**

### A: QUALIFYING CONTRIBUTIONS ARE MEASURABLE ON THE FOLLOWING BASIS:

$$A = \underbrace{B}_{C} \times D$$

### Where

**A** is the score achieved in respect of the Qualifying Contributions made by the Measured Entity

**B** is the annual value of all Qualifying Contributions made by the Measured Entity measured from the commencement of this statement or the Inception Date to the date of measurement

**C** is compliance target in respect of the Qualifying Contributions as specified in the scorecard for statement 400

**D** is the Weighting points allocated to the criteria under the scorecard for statement 400.

## CODE SERIES 500: MEASUREMENT OF THE SOCIO- ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ELEMENTS OF BROAD-BASED BLACK ECONOMIC EMPOWERMENT

## STATEMENT 500: THE GENERAL PRINCIPLES FOR MEASURING THE SOCIO - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ELEMENT

Issued under section 9 of the Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act of 2003

### Arrangement of this statement

Para	Subject	Page
1.	Objectives of this statement	135
2.	The SED scorecard	135
3.	Key Measurement Principles	136
4.	Measurement of Socio-economic development contributions	
5	The Renefit Factor Matrix	139

### 1 OBJECTIVES OF THIS STATEMENT

The objectives of this statement are to specify:

- 1.1 the Socio-Economic Development (SED) and Sector Specific Contributions scorecard;
- 1.2 the key measurement principles applicable when calculating Socio Economic Development Contributions; and
- 1.3 the formula for calculating the individual criteria specified in the SED scorecard.

### 2 THE SED SCORECARD

- 2.1 The Net Profit After Tax (NPAT) or average target applies unless:
- 2.1.1 the company does not make a profit last year or on average over the last five years
- 2.1.2 the net profit margin is less than a quarter of the norm in the industry.
- 2.2 If the Turnover is to be used, the target will be set at:
- 2.2.1 1% x Indicative Profit Margin (NPAT/Turnover) x
  Turnover
- 2.2.2 Indicative profit margin is the profit margin in the last year where the company's profit margin is at least onequarter of the industry norm.
- 2.3 The following table represents the criteria and method used for deriving a score for Socio- Economic Development under this statement:

Criteria	Weighting Points	Compliance Target
Annual value of all Socio- Economic Development Contributions by the Measured Entity as a percentage of the target.	5	1% of NPAT

2.4 The weighting points in the SED scorecard represent the maximum number of points possible for each of the criteria

### 3 KEY MEASUREMENT PRINCIPLES

### 3.1 General principles:

- 3.1.1 Measured Entities receive recognition for any Socio-Economic Development Contributions that are quantifiable as a monetary value using a Standard Valuation Method.
- 3.1.2 Socio-Economic Development Contributions of any Measured Entity are recognisable annually;
- 3.1.2.1 No portion of the value of any Socio-Economic Development contribution that is payable to the beneficiary after the date of measurement can form part of any calculation under this statement

### 3.2 Socio- Economic Development Contributions:

3.2.1 Socio-Economic Development Contributions consist of monetary or non-monetary contributions actually initiated and implemented in favour of beneficiaries by a Measured Entity with the specific objective of

facilitating income generating activities for targeted beneficiaries.

- 3.2.2 The full value of Socio-Economic Development Contributions made to beneficiaries is recognisable if at least 75% of the value directly benefits black people.
- 3.2.3 If less than 75% of the full value of Socio-Economic Development Contributions directly benefits black people, the value of the contribution made multiplied by the percentage that benefits black people, is recognisable.
- 3.2.4 The following is a non-exhaustive list of Socio-Economic Development Contributions:
- 3.2.4.1 grant Contributions to beneficiaries of Socio-Economic Development Contributions;
- 3.2.4.2 guarantees given or security provided for beneficiaries;
- 3.2.4.3 direct costs incurred by a Measured Entity in assisting beneficiaries;
- 3.2.4.4 overhead costs of a Measured Entity directly attributable to Socio Economic Development Contributions;
- 3.2.4.5 developmental capital advanced to beneficiary communities;
- 3.2.4.6 preferential terms granted by a Measured Entity for its supply of goods or services to beneficiary communities;
- 3.2.4.7 payments made by the Measured Entity to third parties to perform socio-economic development on the Measured Entity's behalf;

- 3.2.4.8. subject to paragraph 3.2.5 prov1s1on of training or mentoring to beneficiary communities which will assist them to increase their financial capacity; and
- 3.2.4.9. subject to paragraph 3.2.6 the maintenance by the Measured Entity of a socio-economic development unit which focuses only on support of beneficiaries and beneficiary communities.
- 3.2.5 providing training or mentoring to beneficiary communities by a Measured Entity. (Such contributions are measurable by quantifying the cost of time (excluding travel or commuting time) spent by staff or management of the Measured Entity in carrying out such initiatives. A clear justification must support any claim for time costs incurred, commensurate with the seniority and expertise of the trainer or mentor).
- 3.2.6 Maintaining a socio-economic development unit by the Measured Entity. (Only that portion of salaries and wages attributable to time spent by the staff in, and the other expenses related to, promoting and implementing socio-economic development constitute contributions.)
- 3.2.7 Payments made by the Measure Entity to third parties to perform socioeconomic development on the Measurement Entity's behalf.

## 4 MEASUREMENT OF SOCIO-ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CONTRIBUTIONS

Socio-Economic Development Contributions are measurable using the formula in Annexe 500 (B).

### 5 THE BENEFIT FACTOR MATRIX

The Minister may from time to time, by notice in the Gazette, revise or substitute the Benefit Factor Matrix. Any changes will only be applicable to Compliance Reports prepared for a Measured Entity in respect of the first 12-month period following the gazetting of a revision or substitution.

### Annexe 500(A)- Benefit Factor Matrix

Qualifying Contribution type	Contribution Amount	Benefit Factor
Grant and Related Contri	butions	
Grant Contribution	Full Grant Amount	100%
Direct Cost incurred in supporting socio-economic development, sector specific initiatives or Qualifying Socio-Economic Development Contributions	Verifiable Cost (including both monetary and non- monetary)	100%

Qualifying Contribution type	Contribution Amount	Benefit Factor
Discounts in addition to normal business practices supporting socio-economic development, sector specific initiatives or Qualifying Socio-Economic Development Contributions	Discount Amount (in addition to normal business discount)	100%
Overhead Costs incurred in supporting socio-economic development, sector specific initiatives or Qualifying Socio- Economic Development Contributions	Verifiable Costs (including both monetary and non- monetary)	80%
Contributions made in th	e form of human resource	capacity
Professional services rendered at no cost supporting socio- economic development, sector specific initiatives or Qualifying Socio-Economic Development Contributions	Commercial hourly rate of professional	80%

Qualifying Contribution type	Contribution Amount	Benefit Factor
Professional services rendered at a discount supporting socio economic development, sector specific initiatives or Qualifying Socio-Economic Development Contributions	Value of discount based on commercial hourly rate of professional	80%
Time of employees of Measured Entity productively deployed in assisting beneficiaries and supporting socio- economic development, sector specific initiatives or Qualifying Socio- Economic Development Contributions	Monthly salary divided by 160	80%

### ANNEXE 500 (B)

## A: QUALIFYING CONTRIBUTIONS ARE MEASURABLE ON THE FOLLOWING BASIS:

$$A = \underline{B} \times D$$

### Where

**A** is the score achieved in respect of the Qualifying Contributions made by the Measured Entity

**B** is the value of all Qualifying Contributions made by the Measured Entity measured from the commencement or this statement or the Inception Date to the date of measurement

 $\emph{\textbf{C}}$  is compliance target in respect of the Qualifying Contributions as specified in the scorecard for statement 500 (see paragraph 2.1)

**D** is the Weighting points allocated to the measured enterprise development criteria under the scorecard for statement 500 (5)

# BROAD-BASED BLACK ECONOMIC EMPOWERMENT ACT SECTION 9(1) CODES OF GOOD PRACTICE AS AMENDED SCHEDULE 1

### INTERPRETATION AND DEFINITIONS

### Part 1: Interpretation

- The Codes of Good Practice must be interpreted according to the following provisions unless the context requires a different meaning:
- In interpreting the provisions of the Codes, any reasonable interpretation consistent with the objectives of the Act and the B-BBEE Strategy must take precedence.
- Words importing persons shall where the context so requires or admits include individuals, firms, partnerships, trusts, corporations, governmental bodies, authorities, agencies, unincorporated bodies of persons or associations and any organisation having legal capacity.
- The Schedules and Annexes to the Codes are an integral part of the Codes and a reference to the Codes includes a reference to the Schedules.

### Part 2: Definitions

In these Codes unless the context otherwise requires:

"Absorption"	means a measure of the Measured Entity's ability to successfully secure formal permanent or long-term contract employment for the Learner or to assist the learners proceed with further education and training;	
"Acquisition Debt"	means the debts of:  (a) Black participants incurred in financing their purchase of their equity instruments in the Measured Entity; and  (b) Juristic persons or trusts found in the chain of ownership between the eventual Black Participants and the Measured Entity for the same purpose as those in (a);	
"Associated Entity"	means an Entity with which a Seller has concluded a Qualifying Transaction;	
"B-BBEE"	means Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment;	
"B-BBEE Controlled Company"	means a juristic person, having shareholding or similar members interest, in which black participants enjoy a right to Exercisable Voting Rights that is at least 51% of the total such rights measured using the Flow Through Principle;	

"B-BBEE Owned Company"	means juristic person, having shareholding or similar members interest, that is B-BBEE controlled, in which Black participants enjoy a right to Economic Interest that is at least 51% of the total such rights measured using the Flow Through Principle;
"B-BBEE Recognition Level"	means the percentage B-BBEE Recognition Levels as determined:  (a) for Entities that are neither Qualifying Small Enterprises nor Exempted Micro- Enterprises, using statement 000;  (b) for Qualifying Small Enterprises, using statement 000; and  (c) for Exempted Micro-Enterprises, the applicable deemed B-BBEE Recognition understatement 000;
"B-BBEE Status"	means the B-BBEE status of a Measured Entity as determined understatement 000;
"B-BBEE Verification Professional Regulator"	means a body appointed by the Minister for the accreditation of rating agencies or the authorisation of B-BBEE verification professionals;
"Benefit Factor"	means a factor specified in the Benefit Factor Matrix applicable to fixing the monetary value of Enterprise Development and Supplier Development and Socio- Economic Development Contributions claimable understatement 400 and 500;

"Benefit Factor Matrix"	means the Benefit Factor Matrix for Enterprise Development and Supplier Development and Socio-Economic Development Contributions annexed to statement 400 and 500;
"Black Designated Groups"means:	<ul> <li>(a) unemployed black people not attending and not required by law to attend an educational institution and not awaiting admission to an educational institution</li> <li>(b) Black people who are youth as defined in the National Youth Commission Act of 1996;</li> <li>(c) Black people who are persons with disabilities as defined in the Code of Good Practice on employment of people with disabilities issued under the Employment Equity Act;</li> <li>(d) Black people living in rural and underdeveloped areas;</li> <li>(e) Black military veterans who qualifies to be called a military veteran in terms of</li> </ul>
"Black New Entrants"	the Military Veterans Act 18 of 2011;  means Black participants who hold rights of ownership in a Measured Entity and who, before holding the Equity Instrument in the Measured Entity, have not held equity instruments in other Entities which has a total value of more than R50,000,000, measured using a standard valuation method;

"Black People"	Is a generic term which means African, Coloureds and Indians
	(a) who are citizens of the Republic of South Africa by birth or decent; or
	(b) who became citizens of the Republic of south Africa by naturalisation –
	(i) before 27 April 1994;
	(ii) on or after 27 April 1994 and who would have been entitled to acquire citizenship by naturalisation prior to that date.
"Broad-Based Ownership Scheme"	means a ownership scheme which meets the rules set out in Annexe 100B
"Certified Learning Programme"	means any Learning Programme for which the Measured Entity has:
	(a) any form of independent written certificate as referred to in the "Learning Achievements" column of the Learning Programme Matrix; or if it does not have such certification:
	(b) an enrolment certificate issued by the independent person responsible for the issue of the certification referred to in statement 300 confirming the employee has:

	(i) enrolled for, is attending and is making satisfactory progress in the Learning Programme; or
	(ii) enrolled for but not attended the Learning; or
	(iii) attended the Training Programme but has failed an evaluation of their learning progress
"Companies Act"	means the Companies Act, No. 71 of 2008 as amended or substituted;
"Company Limited by Guarantee"	means a company as referred in the Companies Act, No 71 of 2008;
Competent Person"	means a person who has acquired through training, qualification and experience the knowledge and skills necessary for undertaking any task assigned to them under the codes;
"Core Skills"	means skills that are:
	(a) value-adding to the activities of the Measured Entity in line with its core business;
	(b) in areas the Measured Entity cannot outsource; or
	(c) within the production/operational part of the Measured Entity's value-chain; as opposed to the supply side; services or downstream operations;

"Critical Skills"	means those skills identified as being critical by any SETA;
'ЕАР"	Economically Active Population as determined and published by Stats SA. The operative EAP for the purposes of any calculation under the Codes will be the most recently published EAP;
Economic Interest"	means a claim against an Entity representing a return on ownership of the Entity similar in nature to a dividend right, measured using the Flow-Through and, where applicable, the Modified Through Principles;
"EE Act "	means the Employment Equity Act of 1998, as amended;
"EE Regulations"	means the regulations under the Employment Equity Act
"Elements"	means the measurable quantitative or qualitative elements of B-BBEE compliance in the Generic Scorecard and the Codes;
"Employed Learner"	In terms of section 18 (1) of the Skills Development Act it means a learner that was in the employment of the employer party to the learnership agreement concerned when the agreement was concluded. The learner's contract of employment is therefore not affected by the agreement.

"Employee with a Disability"	has the meaning defined in the Code of Good Practice on Key Aspects of Disability in the Workplace issued under section 54 of the Employment Equity Act; align with the Employment Equity Act
"Employee"	bears the meaning as defined in the Labour Relations Act 66 of 1995 as amended;
"Employee Ownership Scheme"	means a worker or employee scheme;
"Empowering Supplier"	An Empowering Supplier within a context of B-BBEE is a B-BBEE compliant entity, which is a good citizen South African entity, comply with all regulatory requirements of the country and should meet at least three if it is a large enterprise or one if it is a QSE of the following criteria:  (a) At least 25% of cost of sales excluding labour cost and depreciation must be procured from local producers or local supplier in SA, for service industry labour cost are included but capped to 15%.  (b) Job creation – 50% of jobs created are for Black people provided that the number of Black employees since the immediate prior verified 8-BBEE Measurement is maintained

	<ul> <li>(c) At least 25% transformation of raw material/benefication which include local manufacturing, packaging, production and/or assembly, and/or packaging.</li> <li>(d) Skills transfer- at least spend 12 days per annum of productivity deployed in assisting Black EMEs and QSEs beneficiaries to increase their operation or financial capacity.</li> </ul>
"Enterprise Development Contributions"	means monetary or non-monetary contributions carried out for the following beneficiaries, with the objective of contributing to the development, sustainability and financial and operational independence of those beneficiaries:
	(a) Enterprise Development Contributions to Exempted Micro-Enterprises or Qualifying Small Enterprises which are at least 51% Black owned or at least 551% Black women owned;
"Entity"	means a legal entity or a natural or a juristic person conducting a business, trade or profession in the Republic of South Africa;
"Entrepre- neur"	means a person who starts and I or operates a business which includes identifying opportunities in the market, taking risks with a view of being rewarded with profits;

"Equity Equivalent contribution"	means an equity equivalent contribution made by a Multinational under an Equity Equivalent Investment Programme;
"Equity Equivalent Investment Programme"	means a public programme or scheme of any government department, provincial or local government in the Republic of South Africa or any other programme approved by the Minister as an Equity Equivalent Investment Programme;
"Equity Instrument"	means the instrument by which a Participant holds rights of ownership in an Entity;
"Equivalency Percentage"	means a percentage ownership performance for all the indicators in the Associated Enterprise's Ownership Scorecard arising from a Qualifying Transaction included in the Ownership Scorecard of the beneficiary entity;
"Executive Members of the Board"	means those members of the Board who are executive directors as defined in the King Report;
"Exempted Micro Enterprise"	means an Entity with an annual turnover of R 10 (ten) million or less;
"Exercisable Voting Right"	means a voting right of a Participant that is not subject to any limit;

"Global Practice"	means a globally and uniformly applied practice of a Multinational, restricting alienation of equity in or the sale of businesses in its regional operations.  The practice must have existed before the promulgation of the Act;
"Grant Contribution"	means the monetary value of Qualifying Contributions made by the Measured Entity to a beneficiary in the form of grants, donations, discounts and other similar quantifiable benefits which are not recoverable by the Measured Entity;
"Group Structure"	means an ownership arrangement whereby one or more Measured Entities that are juristic persons are subsidiaries of another Measured Entity that would qualify as a holding company;
"Higher Education Institution"	means a higher education institution as defined under the Higher Education Act of 1997;
"Indicator Percentage"	means the percentage compliance of the Associated Entity for all the indicators of the Associated Enterprises ownership Scorecard. The calculation of indicator Percentages follows the rules in statement 100 using the actual percentage compliance for each indicator and not the resulting scores;

<b>"</b> .	
"Industry Specific Initiatives"	means the qualifying contributions that are unique to the industry in which enterprises operate. For the purposes of the Codes an industry may be grouped in major divisions in accordance with the Standard Industrial Classification Coding System used by Statistic South Africa;
"Internship"	means an opportunity to integrate career related experience into an undergraduate education by participating in planned, supervised work;
"Junior Management"	means an employee of the Measured Entity who is a member of the occupational category of "Junior Management" as determined using the Employment Equity regulations;
"Learnership"	means a work-based route to a qualification. It is a workplace education and training programme comprising both structured practical workplace (on-the-job) experience and structured theoretical training.
"Learning Programmes"	means any learning programme set out in the Learning Programme Matrix;
"Learning Programme Matrix"	means the Learning Programme Matrix annexed as Annexe "300A" in statement 300;

"Leviable Amount"	bears the meaning as defined in the Skills Development Levies Act of 1999 as determined using the Fourth Schedule to the Income Tax Act;
"Management Fees"	means the total Economic Interest received by a Broad-Based Ownership Scheme or Black participants in any year less the amounts distributed or applied to beneficiaries and the amounts reserved for future distribution or application;
"Mandated Investments"	means any investments made by or through any third party regulated by legislation on behalf of the actual owner of the funds, pursuant to a mandate given by the owner to a third party, which mandate is governed by that legislation. Some examples of domestic mandated investments and the portions of those investments subject to the exclusion principle are contained in Annexe 100A attached to statement 100;
"Measured Entity"	means an Entity as well as an organ of state or public entity subject to measurement under the Codes;

"51% Black	means an Entity in which:
Owned "	(a) Black people hold at least 51% of the exercisable voting rights as determined under Code series 100;
	(b) black people hold at least 51% of the economic interest as determined under Code series 100; and
	(c) has earned all the points for Net Value understatement 100;
"51% Black	means an Entity in which:
Women Owned "	(a) Black women hold at least 51% of the exercisable voting rights as determined under Code series 100;
	(b) Black women hold at least 51% of the economic interest as determined under Code series 100; and
	(c) has earned all the points for Net Value understatement 100;
"30% Black	means an Entity in which:
Women Owned"	(a) Black women hold more than 30% of the exercisable voting rights as determined under Code series 100;
	(b) Black women hold more than 30% of the economic interest as determined under Code series 100; and
	(c) has earned all the points for Net Value understatement 100;

"Middle Management"	means an employee of the Measured Entity who is a member of the occupational category of "Middle Management" as determined using the Employment Equity regulations;
"Multination- al Business"	means a Measured Entity with a business in the Republic of South Africa and elsewhere which maintains its international headquarters outside the Republic;
"National Skills Development Strategy"	means the national skills development strategy referred to in section 5(1)(a)(ii) of the Skills Development Act;
"Net Profit After Tax"	means the operating profit of measured entity after tax. It incorporates both the equity/loss figures and abnormal items, but excludes extraordinary items as determined by (GAAP) Generally Accepted Accounting Practices;
"Net Profit Before Tax"	means the operating profit of a measured entity before tax. It incorporates both the equity/loss figures and abnormal items, but excludes extraordinary items as determined by (GAAP) Generally Accepted Accounting Practices;
"Net Value"	means the percentage resulting from the formula in Annexe 100(C) of statement 100;

"Net-Value date"	means the later occurring of the date of commencement of statement 100 and the date upon which the earliest of all still operative transactions undertaken by the Measured Entity in order to achieve black rights of ownership, became effective and unconditional;
"New Enterprise"	means an early stage business which is similar to a start- up. However, an early stage business is typically 3 years old or less.
"Non-Profit Organisation"	means a non-profit organisation registered under the Non-Profit Organisation Act of 1997;
"Outsourced Labour Expenditure"	means any expenditure incurred in:  (a) procuring the services of or from a labour broker; and  (b) procuring the services of any person who receives any remuneration or to whom any remuneration accrues because of any services rendered by such person to or on behalf of a labour broker;
"Participant"	means a natural person holding rights of ownership in a Measured Entity;

"PIVOTAL report"	means a report on 'Professional, Vocational, Technical and Academic Learning' programmes that meet the critical needs for economic growth and social development, generally combining course work at universities, universities of technology and colleges with structured learning at work.
"Priority Skills"	means Core, Critical and Scarce Skills as well as any skills specifically identified:
	(a) in a Sector Skills Plan issued by the Department of Labour of the Republic of South Africa;
	(b) National Skills Development Strategy III;
	(c) New Growth Path; and (d) National Development Plan Remove.
"Private Equity Fund"	means a third party fund through which investments are made on behalf of the actual owner of the funds pursuant to a mandate given by that person to the private equity fund;
"Public Benefit Organisation"	means an entity as defined in section 30 of the income Tax Act of 1962;

"Qualifying Enterprise and Supplier Development Contributions"	means a collective term describing Enterprise Development and Supplier Development Contributions targeting EME's and QSE's which are at least 51% black owned or at least 30% black women owned, black youth in rural, and underdeveloped areas in statement 400;
"Qualifying Small Enterprise"	means an Entity that qualifies for measurement under the Qualifying Small Enterprise scorecard with a turnover of R10 million or more but less than R50 million;
"Qualifying Socio- Economic Contributions"	Is a collective termfor Socio-Economic Project Contributions and Socio-Economic Contributions;
"Qualifying Transaction"	means a sale of a business, valuable business assets or shares that results in the creation of sustainable business opportunities and transfer of specialised skills or productive capacity to Black people;
"Related Enterprise"	means an Entity controlled by a Measured Entity whether directly or indirectly controlled by the natural persons who have direct or indirect control over that Measured Entity or the immediate family of those natural persons;

"Rights of Ownership"	Is a collective term for the right to Economic Interest and the right to Exercisable Voting Rights;
"Scarce Skills"	are those skills identified as being scarce by any SETA;
"Section 21 Company"	means an association not for gain incorporated under section 21 of the Companies Act;
"Sector Code"	means a code in series 003 which is applicable to a particular sector;
"Seller"	means the Entity or the person concluding a Qualifying Transaction with the Associated Enterprise;
"Senior Management"	means an employee of the Measured Entity who is a member of the occupational category of "Senior Management" as determined using the Employment Equity regulations;
"Skills Development Expenditure"	comprises the money that a Measured Entity spends on skills development. It excludes the skills development levy payable by the Measured Entity under the Skills Development Levies Act;

## "Socio-Economic Development Contributions"

means monetary or non-monetary contribution implemented for communities, natural persons or groups of natural persons where at least 75% of the beneficiaries are Black people. The objective of Socio-Economic Development Contributions is the promotion of sustainable access for the beneficiaries to the economy. Socio-Economic Development Contributions commonly take the following forms:

- development programmes for women, youth, people with disabilities, people living in rural areas;
- (b) support of healthcare and HIV/AIDS programmes;
- support for education programmes, resources and materials at primary, secondary and tertiary education level, as well as bursaries and scholarships;
- (d) community training; skills development for unemployed people and adult basic education and training; or
- (e) support of arts, cultural or sporting development programmes;

"Socio- Economic Project Contributions"	means monetary or non-monetary contributions carried out for the benefit of any projects approved for this purpose by any organ of state or sectors including without limitation:
	(a) projects focusing on environmental conservation, awareness, education and waste management; and
	(b) projects targeting infrastructural development or reconstruction in underdeveloped areas; rural communities or geographic areas identified in the government's integrated sustainable rural development or urban renewal programmes;
	(c) New projects promoting beneficiation;
"Standard Valuation"	means a standard valuation method for an asset, an Economic Interest, or any other instrument or right relevant to measurement under statement 100, undertaken using normal valuation methods that represent standard market practice;
"Start-up Enterprise"	means a recently formed or incorporated Entity that has been in operation for less than 1 year. A start-up enterprise does not include any newly constituted enterprise which merely a continuation of a preexisting enterprise;

"Subsidiary"	has the meaning defined in section 1(3) of the Companies Act;
"Superior Contributor to 8-BBEE"	is a Level One to Level Three Contributor to B-BBEE;
"Supplier"	means any supplier or service provider to a Measured Entity if any portion of the supply or service provision falls within the definition of Total Measured Procurement Spend;
"Supplier Development Contribu- tions"	means monetary or non-monetary contributions carried out for the benefit of value-adding suppliers to the Measured Entity, with the objective of contributing to the development, sustainability and financial and operational independence of those beneficiaries:
	(a) Supplier Development Contributions to suppliers that are Exempted Micro-Enterprises or Qualifying Small Enterprises which are at least 51% black owned or at least 51% black women owned;
"Target"	means the targets for the various Elements in the Generic and QSE Scorecard;
"the Act"	means the Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act 53 of 2003;

"the Codes"	means the Codes of Good Practice including all the statements as issued under section 9 of the Act;
"the Generic Scorecard"	means the balanced B-BBEE scorecard as contained in statement 000;
"the PFMA"	means the Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1999 as amended;
"the QSE Scorecard"	means the QSE scorecard referred to in statement 000;
"the Skills Development Act"	means the Skills Development Act of 1998;
"the Skills Development Levies Act"	means the Skills Development Levies Act of 1999;
"the Strategy Document"	means the document entitled "South Africa's Economic Transformation – A Strategy for Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment" published by the department of trade and industry in March 2003 as amended or substituted under section 11 of the Act;

"Third Party Rights"	means third party legal or commercial rights that restrict withhold or defer any benefit associated with ownership of any Equity Instrument. Third party rights include only those rights:  (a) created against a black Participant to secure, for a lender, repayment of a loan advanced to that Participant for financing their purchase of their equity instrument in the Measured Entity;  (b) held against a juristic person or trust that is in the chain of ownership between the Measured Entity and that the eventual black Participant serving the same purpose mentioned in (a) above;
"Total Labour Cost"	means the total amount of remuneration paid by an Entity to its employees determined using section 3(4)of the Skills Development Levies Act of 1999 and the Forth Schedule of the Income Tax Act of 1962;
"Total Revenue"	means the total income of an Entity from its operations as determined under South African Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
"Transformation Charters"	means the sectoral transformation charters referred to in section 12 of the Act;

"Unemployed Learner"	means a learner that was not in the employment of the employer party to the learnership agreement concerned when the agreement was concluded. The employer and learner must therefore enter into a contract of employment. Refer to the Skills Development Act.
"Unincorpo- rated Joint Venture"	means a joint venture between two or more Measured Entities effected by agreement without incorporation;
"Voting Right"	means a voting right attaching to an Equity Instrument owned by or held for a participant measured using the Flow through Principle or the Control Principle;
"Weighting"	means the weightings applied to various Elements in the Generic Scorecard and QSE Scorecard;
"Workplace Skills Plan"	means the plan of a Measured Entity approved by the relevant SETA.